
 
 
 
 

WILMETTE PARK DISTRICT 
Special Meeting of the  

Board of Park Commissioners 
Monday, August 19, 2019 

7:30 p.m. - Village Hall Council Chambers 
 
 

 
 

I. Meeting Called to Order 
 

II. Communications and Correspondence 
 
III. Recognition of Visitors 

 
IV. New Business 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2019-R-9 Approving the Terms and 
Authorizing the Execution of a Memorandum of Understanding 
Between Wilmette Park District and Village of Wilmette for the 
Construction, Operation, and Maintenance of Stormwater 
Improvements on Certain Park District Owned Properties 

 
V. Adjournment 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you are a person with a disability and need special accommodations to participate in and/or attend 
a Wilmette Park District meeting, please notify the Director’s Office at 847-256-6100. 

 1



Wilmette Park District 
Policy for Public Comment 

 
The Board of Park Commissioners, in its regular or special meetings, is a deliberative 
body assembled to make decisions on new and pending matters affecting the District.  
Park Board and Committee meetings are meetings held in public, not a public meeting.  
The Board invites both oral and written communications from its residents. 
 
To facilitate the conduct of Board/Committee meetings, the following procedures will be 
followed: 
 

1. A section of each regular meeting is set aside for public comment and will be 
noted on the agenda as “Recognition of Visitors.”   

2. During the “Recognition of Visitors” agenda item, audience members should 
raise their hands and be recognized by the President/Chairperson prior to 
speaking. 

3. When recognized by the President/Chairperson, each audience member should 
identify themselves and limit speaking to no more than three (3) minutes, unless 
additional time is granted by the President/Chairperson. 

4. Questions are to be directed to the entire Board/Committee. 
5. Park Board members may, by addressing the President/Chairperson, interrupt a 

presenter to obtain clarification and/or further information. 
6. A Board/Committee meeting is not a forum for complaints against individual 

employees.  Such matters are handled by directly contacting the Executive 
Director. Complaints against the Executive Director should be handled by directly 
contacting the President of the Board of Park Commissioners. 

7. During presentation and discussion of agenda items, the President/Chairperson 
will not recognize speakers in the audience unless the Board/Committee desires 
additional information from an audience member. 

8. When addressing the Board/Committee, all persons permitted to speak shall 
confine their remarks to the matter at hand and avoid personal remarks, the 
impugning of motives, and merely contentious statements.  If any person 
indulges in such remarks or otherwise engages in conduct injurious to the civil 
discourse of the Board/Committee and the meeting, the President/Chairperson 
may immediately terminate the opportunity to speak.  This decision is at the 
discretion of the President/Chairperson or upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds 
(2/3) of the park board commissioners present.   

9. Any person, except a member of the Board, who engages in disorderly conduct 
during a meeting, may be ejected from the meeting upon motion passed by a 
majority of the Board present. 

2



 
ACTION LIST 

August 19, 2019 – Special Meeting 
Board of Park Commissioners 

 

 

Agenda No.                                        ACTION 
I. Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners called to order                               

IV.(A).  Move to approve Resolution 2019-R-9 Approving the Terms and Authorizing the 
Execution of a Memorandum of Understanding Between Wilmette Park District and 
Village of Wilmette for the Construction, Operation, and Maintenance of Stormwater 
Improvements on Certain Park District Owned Properties 

V. Move to adjourn Regular Board Meeting. 

 

3



1

Libby Baker

From: Stephen Wilson
Sent: Friday, August 16, 2019 1:08 PM
To: Libby Baker
Subject: FW: [external] Community Playfield

 
 
Steve Wilson 
Executive Director 
Wilmette Park District 
847‐256‐9617 
swilson@wilpark.org 
 

From: Amy Wolfe <awolfe@wilpark.org>  
Sent: Friday, August 16, 2019 1:02 PM 
To: Stephen Wilson <swilson@wilpark.org> 
Subject: Fwd: [external] Community Playfield 

 
 
 

Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: "JSolomon@foley.com" <JSolomon@foley.com> 
Subject: [external] Community Playfield 
Date: August 16, 2019 at 9:43:55 AM CDT 
To: "awolfe@wilpark.org" <awolfe@wilpark.org> 
 
Dear Amy, 
My wife and I are long‐time residents of 2349 Meadow Drive N. We have heard that the Park Board is 
considering cutting down the trees in the park in order to create the possibility of more soccer and other 
playfields. It is my strong opinion that this would be a very unfortunate decision. The trees create a 
sense of balance and beauty for the park. Removing the trees would result in the beautiful park being 
transformed into one giant field. To my knowledge, there is no shortage of children’s play fields in a very 
large park area. In my view removing the trees that have stood for decades would be a shocking and 
very poor decision. 
Joel 
  
  
Joel Solomon 
 
Foley & Lardner LLP 
321 North Clark Street 
Chicago, IL 60654-5313 
P 312.832.4902 
C 312.622.2487 
View My Bio 
Visit Foley.com 

4



2

 
  
 
 
The information contained in this message, including but not limited to any attachments, may be confidential or 
protected by the attorney-client or work-product privileges. It is not intended for transmission to, or receipt by, any 
unauthorized persons. If you have received this message in error, please (i) do not read it, (ii) reply to the sender that 
you received the message in error, and (iii) erase or destroy the message and any attachments or copies. Any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or reliance on the contents of this message or its attachments is strictly prohibited, 
and may be unlawful. Unintended transmission does not constitute waiver of the attorney-client privilege or any other 
privilege. Legal advice contained in the preceding message is solely for the benefit of the Foley & Lardner LLP 
client(s) represented by the Firm in the particular matter that is the subject of this message, and may not be relied 
upon by any other party. Unless expressly stated otherwise, nothing contained in this message should be construed 
as a digital or electronic signature, nor is it intended to reflect an intention to make an agreement by electronic 
means. 

 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



1

Libby Baker

From: Gordon Anderson
Sent: Monday, August 12, 2019 1:41 PM
To: Stephen Wilson
Cc: Libby Baker; Amy Wolfe
Subject: Fwd: [external] Cottonwood Trees
Attachments: Highrest grove.docx; ATT00001.htm

Steve  
For sharing with the Board.  
Thanks  
Gordon  
 
 
Begin forwarded message: 
N 

From: faye Jacobs <frjacobs@comcast.net> 
Date: August 11, 2019 at 2:34:41 PM CDT 
To: <ganderson@wilpark.org> 
Subject: [external] Cottonwood Trees 

Dear Vice President Anderson, 
I appreciate the time you give to help continue to keep Wilmette so wonderful. 
I hope to share some of this letter below tomorrow night at the Wilmette Park Board meeting and 
PRAY that somehow my words will make a difference in the consensus to allow the Highcrest 
cottonwoods to live. 
Thank you. 
Faye Jacobs 

20



August, 2019 
Thank you for considering an alternate plan for the necessary stormwater project 
here in our beloved Community Playfield in Wonderful Wilmette. 
 
I’ve lived on the perimeter of the Community Playfield for 30 years and have 
seen countless people of all ages, athletic teams, students, as well as pets, enjoy 
the beauty of the field and feel that one of the highlights of the park is witnessing 
the irreplaceable grove of our native cottonwood trees all year long. 
 
Twenty five years ago, I planted, at a shared expense with the Park District, 
several trees and a bench at the northeast side of the park in memory of a child 
of mine who died at an early age. 
 
My goal for this bench was to invite people of all ages to sit, rest, heal, 
contemplate and even kiss…this bench was specifically planted at a certain 
angle to offer the best view of these majestic cottonwood trees to assure there be 
a place for ALL of our community to rest and heal, if need be, and experience 
free beauty all year long, including the soccer season. 
 
I invite all of you to come and sit on this bench, and witness the Community 
Playfield’s beauty with these trees in your view and then close your eyes and 
imagine these trees gone. The nesting site for Baltimore Orioles, gone…Red 
tailed hawks that nest and perch in the trees…gone…the many species of 
butterflies…gone…the vibrant color in the spring time…gone….the sun glistening 
on icicles formed on the trees after a snowstorm while cross country skiing 
through the trees, gone…ENORMOUS SHADE offered to the schoolchildren and 
soccer teams…Gone.   
 
I’ve done this experiment and, for me there is a feeling of loss and the same 
goes for others who I’ve chatted with as they stroll through the park on these hot 
summer nights. ‘Oh no’ is the most common response when told that the grove of 
trees..…’yes ‘the tall ones…the ones that can never be replaced in our lifetime.. 
could be chopped down. 
 
For all of these years, I’ve witnessed students from HMS have color war games 
and other outdoor activities and use the grove for necessary shade on a hot day. 
 
It’s true that the Community Playfield is just that, a Playfield for ALL of the 
community and with that said, I understand that the stormwater project is most 
likely going forward and that the Community Playfield will be under renovation 
but PLEASE, I ask you kindly, to put the playfield back just like it is 
TODAY…without the cutting down of these majestic trees. 
 
A few months ago, at the urging of those opposed to the chopping down of the 
cottonwood grove, an approval was set forth by the Village Board to investigate 
other configurations for digging beneath the Playfield and to our JOY two plans 

21



were set forth which not only cost LESS money by almost one million dollars but 
SAVED a majority of the trees. 
 
Many of those who signed a petition to save the trees were overjoyed that, it 
seemed at the time, these alternate plans were being considered. 
 
At the last Wilmette Park District meeting on 7/8/19, many questions were raised 
NOT having to do with the stormwater project but ways in which an extra soccer 
field could be added in lieu of our grove of trees. 
 
Personally, I was surprised to hear why a grove of trees would be sacrificed to 
add an extra area for a soccer game primarily in the spring and fall when there is 
so much beautiful open space, which already exists! 
 
I wondered, is this about the stormwater problem and upcoming project that 
many Wilmette residents have waited patiently to begin?? .. OR, is it now about 
extra soccer space when I, along with the hundreds that signed the petition to 
save the trees, do not feel is necessary. 
 
The Arbor Day Foundation describes the cottonwood tree as an age-old friend to 
the American people. I describe the Highcrest cottonwood grove 
as an age-old friend to OUR Wilmette Community.. and urge you, before you 
vote, to come and sit on my bench, look out and see and FEEL their necessity, 
and then vote to save the Highcrest Grove of trees, choose the LESS 
EXPENSIVE plan for the sake of ALL taxpayers in Wilmette  and PLEASE allow 
the cottonwoods to LIVE. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Faye Jacobs 
2407 Pomona Lane 

22



1

Libby Baker

From: Julia Goebel
Sent: Sunday, August 11, 2019 1:03 PM
To: Libby Baker
Subject: Fwd: [external] Request for meeting to Discuss the Highcrest Grove

Please add to correspondence for special meeting on 8/19.  

____________________________ 
 
Julia Goebel 
 
Commissioner 
Wilmette Park District 
jgoebel@wilpark.org 
 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Rick Prohov <rprohov@paalaw.com> 
Date: August 9, 2019 at 12:53:00 PM CDT 
To: Julia Goebel <jgoebel@wilpark.org> 
Cc: "Herbert H. Engelhard" <friendsofhighcrestgrove@gmail.com>, "praj.shah@creospan.com" 
<praj.shah@creospan.com>, "Bielinski, Bob" <bielinskib@wilmette.com>, Martha Hellander 
<mhellander1@comcast.net>, "awolfe@wilpark.org" <awolfe@wilpark.org>, "ganderson@wilpark.org" 
<ganderson@wilpark.org>, "babbott@wilpark.org" <babbott@wilpark.org>, "mmurdock@wilpark.org" 
<mmurdock@wilpark.org>, Cecilia Clarke <cclarke@wilpark.org>, "jgoebel@wilpark.org" 
<jgoebel@wilpark.org>, "Todd Shissler" <tshissler@wilpark.org>, Faye Jacobs <frjacobs@comcast.net>, "E. 
Engelhard" <eengel@sbcglobal.net>, "derekcasteel@gmail.com" <derekcasteel@gmail.com>, Julia Grosh 
<jmarran3@sbcglobal.net>, Jim Grosh <lightkpr3@sbcglobal.net>, Deborah <dviktora@comcast.net>, 
"csadel1@aol.com" <csadel1@aol.com>, "Berger, Brigitte" <bergerb@wilmette.com>, "swilson@wilpark.org" 
<swilson@wilpark.org>, "joelforwilmette@gmail.com" <joelforwilmette@gmail.com>, 
"barrowp@wilmette.com" <barrowp@wilmette.com>, "doddk@wilmette.com" <doddk@wilmette.com>, 
"kennedyg@wilmette.com" <kennedyg@wilmette.com>, "sullivand@wilmette.com" 
<sullivand@wilmette.com>, "kurzmanj@wilmette.com" <kurzmanj@wilmette.com>, 
"plunketts@wilmette.com" <plunketts@wilmette.com>, "bielinskib@wilmette.com" 
<bielinskib@wilmette.com>, "eric@wilmettebeacon.com" <eric@wilmettebeacon.com>, Ted Prohov 
<t_prohov02@yahoo.com>, Van Economou <Van@EconomouIP.com>, Robert Besser <rbessr@gmail.com>, 
Kristen Casteel <kristenacasteel@gmail.com> 
Subject: RE: [external] Request for meeting to Discuss the Highcrest Grove 

Ms. Goebel 
 
Thanks for your reply.  
 
I am also not yet retired and also have many professional and other commitments as well. 
 
I regret you will not have time to discuss the issues with us before the meeting Monday but will look forward to 

23



2

seeing you there Monday evening.  
 
In your response to my for a request for a meeting, you noted:  "I know you have had great success in rallying 
residents; I have heard very little from those who are to benefit from stormwater relief.  
                                   Perhaps this is an area where you can shine some light in reaching out to those impacted?"
 
Last time I checked, the charge for Intergovernmental cooperation now rests upon the shoulders of the Park 
District to work with the Village administration for Public Works as far as storm water relief is concerned on 
the matter at hand. 
Since the MOU and draft of an Intergovernmental Agreement is what seems to be what is being pushed along 
this month by the Park Commissioners and the Village Trustees, apparently there have been insufficient 
meetings among those respective governing bodies for you to be fully informed of the many years of study of 
the matter. 
 
Since the homes among our members have never suffered from storm water damages, I do not know those that 
do but would welcome the opportunity to meet with them as well.   
 
I believe face to face meetings are still the most productive form of communication.  Your public meetings do 
not afford that opportunity. 
 
I do know that the Village engineers and their consultants have struggled for many years to determine how to 
best address the  storm water management those citizens that do suffer flooding.  I have only read the relevant 
information that is available on the Village Website as I am certain you have as well.  My only information to 
date on the extent of the flooding issues has been gleaned from those reports.  Since I have not been allowed to 
meet with the consulting engineers or ask them questions, I suggest you start with them rather than thinking I 
can shine any light for you on these engineering issues.   
 
The engineers have studied the source of the storm water problems, considered the matter at great expenses for 
years and provided numerous iterations and cost estimates for various alternatives.  It is that process that 
brought your "consensus" to cut the trees and threaten our homes. 
 
Since we cannot meet before Monday when I cannot ask questions and have only three minutes for 
"comments,"  I will look forward to hearing what cooperative efforts your board has made to reach out to the 
Village Board to develop your understanding of the storm water concerns before you could possibly discuss any 
viable memorandum towards a valid agreement. 
 
Respectfully yours, 
 
Rick Prohov 
 
 
 
Rick 
  
Fredric B. Prohov, J.D., CM&AA, LEED AP 
  
Prohov & Associates, Ltd. 
134 North LaSalle Street – Suite 2100 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Phone:         (312) 807 - 3965 
Cell Phone:  (312) 925 – 5444 

24



3

  
Email:     rprohov@paalaw.com 
  
www.paalaw.com   
  
Confidentiality Notice: 
  
This electronic mail message and any attached files contain information intended for the exclusive use of the 
individual or entity to whom it is addressed.  Such message may contain information that is proprietary, 
privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any viewing, copying, disclosure or distribution of this information may 
be subject to legal restriction or sanction.  Please notify sender, by electronic mail or telephone, of any 
unintended recipients and delete the original message without making copies. 
  
Circular 230 Disclosures: 
  
Pursuant to regulations Governing Practice before the Internal Revenue Service, any tax advice contained 
herein is not intended or written to be used and cannot be used by a taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax 
penalties that may be imposed upon the taxpayer.  
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Julia Goebel <jgoebel@wilpark.org>  
Sent: Thursday, August 8, 2019 10:33 AM 
To: Rick Prohov <rprohov@paalaw.com> 
Subject: Re: [external] Request for meeting to Discuss the Highcrest Grove 
 
Hello Mr. Prohov,  
 
Thank you for your outreach and emails. I appreciate the urgency about the matter and take this very seriously. 
 
This week is difficult for me to meet as we have a family reunion as well as professional commitments of mine. 
 
So I will look forward to the discussion on the 12th and the 19th; I am eager to hear from a wide range of 
resident voices, especially those impacted by flooding personally.  
 
I know you have had great success in rallying residents; I have heard very little from those who are to benefit 
from stormwater relief.  
 
Perhaps this is an area where you can shine some light in reaching out to those impacted?  
 
Thanks very much for your continued dialog, 
 
Julia Goebel 
 
 
____________________________ 
 
Julia Goebel 
 

25



4

Commissioner 
Wilmette Park District 
jgoebel@wilpark.org 
 
 
On Aug 6, 2019, at 5:32 PM, Rick Prohov <rprohov@paalaw.com> wrote: 
 
Dear Park Board Commissioners  
 
We now have 464 local Wilmette signatures adding their voices to save the trees in the Highcrest Grove and 
accept an alternative plan at significantly less taxpayer cost. 
 
In our meeting with Mr. Wilson last week, he acknowledged that there is no current nor near-term foreseeable 
demand for more playing fields.  He explained that the Park Board regards the Community Playfields as an 
"asset" with a primary function that its name implies.  It is still a park.  It is not used even close to every day of 
the year for that "function."  A park is generally defined as "an area of natural, semi-natural or planted space set 
aside for human enjoyment and recreation or for the protection of wildlife or natural habitats."  As far as at least 
464 of your constituents have always known, the area is still a park and needs to serve more than sporting 
recreational playfield purposes.  Within 40 acres there is no justifiable need to limit it like this.   When asked 
about it at that same meeting, Mr. Wilson would not rule out an installation of astro-turf if it was being 
considered as an option should the trees come down given the contemplated concrete tank that would be under 
the surface.  If any of you share that vision for the maximization of field utility as you described last month, we 
wish to know.   
 
Since we are diametrically opposed to this type of development in the park, we wish to better understand why 
any of you still would side with the 5 to 2 consensus positions stated in your 7/8 board meeting.   In the case of 
Mr. Abbott and Mr. Anderson, we would welcome a meeting with either of you as well to see if you have any 
update on any efforts to persuade your fellow board members to come to see the issue the way each of you 
expressed your views at the last meeting. 
 
Please let me know when any of you, individually, or more than one collectively, would be able to make 
yourself available for a meeting later this week in Wilmette on a day and at a time and place that would be 
convenient for you.   Depending on the day and time, more than one of us would likely wish to attend such a 
meeting this week. 
 
I look forward to a written reply from each of you at your earliest convenience. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rick Prohov, on behalf of Friends of Highcrest Grove, Inc. 
Cell No. 312 925 5444 
 
https://www.thepetitionsite.com/119/992/219/save-the-trees-in-highcrest-grove-no-floods-no-destruction/ 
464 SUPPORTERS in Wilmette | 864 SUPPORTERS 
 
Naomi F. Illinois 9 hours ago 
I grew up playing soccer on those fields, having gym class on those fields, and going on bike rides along there. 
Would be such a shame to do the plan that has to cut all the trees rather than the alternatives that do not! 
Elizabeth T. Illinois 13 hours ago 
I grew up on Meadow Drive and my back yard faced the park. I looked at those trees every day for 49 years. 
Please do not chop down these beautiful trees! That would be a disgrace! 

26



5

Mark and Christine K.  Illinois 18 hours ago Old growth trees are an irreplaceable asset to the Village of 
Wilmette. As long time Wilmette residents (and in my case, born and raised here), we are appalled that these 
trees would be cut down when better alternatives exist for building the storm water tank. These alternative plans 
represent a win-win solution for this issue. Save the 31 trees that provide so many benefits to the area, and build 
storm water treatment tanks that are affordable and effective. We urge the Park Board to save the Highcrest 
Tree Grove! 
name not displayed Illinois a day ago 
I want to save the trees near the school. Trees are essential to our environment. 
name not displayed Illinois a day ago 
There IS a better way to manage the storm water: use it! Our children need those trees for shade, for beauty, for 
memories, for learning to respect and love the outdoors. We need those trees for air quality, soil retention, 
carbon dioxide removal and water absorption. Don't destroy these beautiful trees that we cannot replace! 
name not displayed Illinois a day ago The height of the trees cannot be replaced The amount of water they soak 
up The beauty in the winter Tracie T. Illinois 2 days ago Those trees are a beautiful part of the Community 
Playfields. They provide shade during soccer and XCountry, and give the fields a look of having been around 
for a long time! How could you even think of cutting them down???? 
C R. Illinois 2 days ago 
There must be a better way 
name not displayed 
Illinois 
2 days ago 
The trees provided shade and beauty to the area and it's environmentally important. 
name not displayed 
Illinois 
2 days ago 
Preservation of natural resources. It seems to me that I’m an area with such heavy pedestrian usage, that the 
Board would entertain and seriously consider alternate locations. 
KAY G. 
Illinois 
2 days ago 
The trees add beauty, shade and act as a natural storage for excess water. The trees add more to the park than 
another soccer field. Don't remove the grove of trees. 
Jeremy F. 
Illinois 
3 days ago 
I grew up playing in those trees while playing soccer in the park or during gym class. Find a solution that 
doesn’t destroy a whole grove of old trees. 
Carla F. 
Illinois 
3 days ago 
Trees are vital to our environment. Terrible thing to teach children to cut down trees. Soccer fields can be 
handled in other ways if needed in the future. 
Charlotte F. 
Illinois 
4 days ago 
I used to play tag and capture the flag between those trees! 
Jesse R. 
Illinois 
4 days ago 
I love trees 
Joseph G. 

27



6

Illinois 
5 days ago 
Grew up on Laurel near community playfield and spent my childhood playing under those trees Tom V. Illinois 
6 days ago It will destroy the park, one of the most valuable assets of Wilmette Nico V.  Illinois 6 days ago I 
grew up with those trees I remember running around between them playing with friends in school and out. As 
well as during summer camps. 
name not displayed 
Illinois 6 days ago 
Why to kill such a majestic tree? It is unacceptable. Find another solution. 
Robin S. Illinois 6 days ago 
Because trees do so much for the environment. 
Peggy C. Illinois 6 days ago 
I've enjoyed the shade these trees provide at hot, sunny soccer games. I'd like to learn more about the more 
affordable plan that includes saving these trees. Cutting them down seems suspiciously senseless. 
Lesley H.  Illinois 7 days ago 
Tragic to cut down old growth trees! 
Helen A. Illinois 7 days ago 
Saving trees is the right thing to do! 
Brian M.  Illinois   7 days ago 
Conservation of trees. For the sake of beauty. Because alternatives which do not destroy trees should be chosen.
Thomas M.  Illinois 7 days ago 
I have played in this grove since I was very young and I don’t want to see it cut down because it is such an 
essential part of the landscape and the way it ties the whole area together. Plus, capture the flag is dope. 
Cathie W.  Illinois 8 days ago 
environmental reasons. there are other viable options I believe without destroying valuable natural habitat. 
Carol R. Illinois 8 days ago 
The trees help clean the air, provide a home for birds and other living creatures, create shade and beauty and 
enhance our community. Don't cut them down! 
Edith R.  Illinois 8 days ago 
Needless destruction of environmentally attractive and proven way to manage water. Other options are 
available. 
name not displayed Illinois 8 days ago 
I grew up playing in these fields around these trees and it would be a shame to see them taken down before 
future generations get the chance to :(♥ Cathy R. Illinois 8 days ago The natural plants attract more birds and 
insects, as I have found in my own yard. 
Richard F. Illinois 8 days ago 
save the tress for my grandchildren who live in Wilmette and attend Highcrest! 
Brigitte G.  Illinois 8 days ago 
For the Wilmette Park District and the Village of Wilmette to even entertain plans to clear-cut an entire grove of 
mature trees in our Village of Wilmette is irresponsible and destructive. Trees contribute to saving nature and 
ultimately saving the environment. Not only does this grove of trees provide shade for the many families during 
soccer games and family outings, but also absorbs the greenhouse gases to provide clean air for all of us. It's 
time for the representatives of the Village of Wilmette to re-think about ways to save our own climate and our 
world environment, as well as the money of those who live in the Village of Wilmette. Let's do better to think 
outside this grove of trees for a more practical and affordable solution. 
Mary B.  Illinois 8 days ago 
I thought Wilmette was called Tree City? 
freed c. Illinois 8 days ago 
Trees good for the environment. Please find a way to save even if it costs us more. 
Barbara K.  Illinois 9 days ago 
Saving mature trees should be a top priority for the village. 

28



7

Tad G.  Illinois 9 days ago 
I believe this is ill-conceived and overly costly. 
name not displayed Illinois 9 days ago 
Home to many animals! Save the trees! 
Mhairi P.  Illinois 9 days ago 
In a world where areas of quiet shaded space are disappearing, I demand an alternate solution to clearing all the 
trees from the Highest Grove. I am a resident that uses the park daily - weekends and weekdays. I never see all 
the fields in use and wonder about the necessity of additional play areas? Who does this benefit and who will 
pay for it? 
Katie D.  Illinois 9 days ago 
tons of kids play in these trees during events and they are beautiful and hard to replace Paul T.  Illinois 9 days 
ago With climate change as one of our most pressing threats, the decision to cut down a huge stand of old 
growth trees, which are a wonderful carbon sink, is irresponsible. We should do the environmentally 
responsible thing and protect our trees. 
Sarah T.  Illinois 9 days ago 
A grove of old growth trees should not be cut down. They are invaluable in an age of rising temperatures and 
provide shade and beauty to Wilmette. 
Gary P.  Illinois 9 days ago 
Preservation of Forests 
Linda s.  Illinois 9 days ago 
Maintaining trees in our community is a critical step to help offset impending climate disaster. Don’t teach kids 
it’s ok to tear down healthy, living trees. Teach everyone to conserve and preserve! 
Laurie M.  Illinois 10 days ago 
During the current climate crisis, we cannot squander any of our natural resources, especially trees that take 
CO2 out of the atmosphere & produce oxygen. DO NOT CUT DOWN THESE TREES!!!! 
Julie R.  Illinois 10 days ago 
I don’t want our beautiful old trees cut down!!! The trees make Wilmette the quaint charming town that it is! It 
also detrimental to our ecosystem. Please reconsider this bad decision to cut down so many trees. Julie Robbins 
Krissy W.  Illinois 10 days ago It’s trees!! Shade, wild animals! 
Kara K.  Illinois 10 days ago 
My daughters relish the shade of those trees at recess, gym, cross country practice, and playing with their 
friends. They are already removing other large, old trees inside the Highcrest courtyard as part of the HMS 
learning commons expansion. What are we teaching our children, the next generations, about the importance of 
green space? The benefits of trees to our environment and general health? About shortsighted decisions vs 
finding creative solutions. The community playfields are much larger than just this grove and surely alternatives 
are possible. 
Donna M.  Illinois 10 days ago 
Trees offer needed shade to the students and sports teams. There is an another option for placement and 
installation of the storm water underground tank. Use that other option. Leave the trees where they are. It takes 
decades for a beautiful tree to mature as these have. Choose the plan that is more affordable, saves taxpayer 
money, and SAVES the grove of trees at Highcrest. 
Sally V.  Illinois 10 days ago 
Mature trees need to be preserved whenever possible, always.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rick Prohov, on behalf of Friends of Highcrest Grove, Inc. 
 
Fredric B. Prohov, J.D., CM&AA, LEED AP 
 

29



8

Prohov & Associates, Ltd. 
134 North LaSalle Street – Suite 2100 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Phone:         (312) 807 - 3965 
Cell Phone:  (312) 925 – 5444 
 
Email:     rprohov@paalaw.com 
 
www.paalaw.com   
 
Confidentiality Notice: 
 
This electronic mail message and any attached files contain information intended for the exclusive use of the 
individual or entity to whom it is addressed.  Such message may contain information that is proprietary, 
privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any viewing, copying, disclosure or distribution of this information may 
be subject to legal restriction or sanction.  Please notify sender, by electronic mail or telephone, of any 
unintended recipients and delete the original message without making copies. 
 
Circular 230 Disclosures: 
 
Pursuant to regulations Governing Practice before the Internal Revenue Service, any tax advice contained 
herein is not intended or written to be used and cannot be used by a taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax 
penalties that may be imposed upon the taxpayer.  
 
 

30



1

Libby Baker

From: Julia Goebel
Sent: Sunday, August 11, 2019 1:04 PM
To: Libby Baker
Subject: Fwd: [external] Request for meeting to Discuss the Highcrest Grove

Please add to correspondence for special meeting on 8/19.  
 
Thanks,  
Julia 

____________________________ 
 
Julia Goebel 
 
Commissioner 
Wilmette Park District 
jgoebel@wilpark.org 
 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: <csadel1@aol.com> 
Date: August 10, 2019 at 5:05:28 PM CDT 
To: <jgoebel@wilpark.org> 
Cc: <hengelhard@sbcglobal.net>, <awolfe@wilpark.org>, <ganderson@wilpark.org>, 
<babbott@wilpark.org>, <mmurdock@wilpark.org>, <cclarke@wilpark.org>, <jgoebel@wilpark.org>, 
<tshissler@wilpark.org>, <swilson@wilpark.org>, <barrowp@wilmette.com>, <bielinskib@wilmette.com>, 
<doddk@wilmette.com>, <kennedyg@wilmette.com>, <kurzmanj@wilmette.com>, 
<plunketts@wilmette.com>, <braimanm@wilmette.com>, <frenzert@wilmette.com>, 
<rprohov@paalaw.com>, <praj.shah@creospan.com>, <schmick.mary8@gmail.com>, 
<bielinskib@wilmette.com>, <mhellander1@comcast.net>, <frjacobs@comcast.net>, 
<derekcasteel@gmail.com>, <jmarran3@sbcglobal.net>, <lightkpr3@sbcglobal.net>, 
<dviktora@comcast.net>, <csadel1@aol.com>, <bergerb@wilmette.com>, <Van@EconomouIP.com>, 
<rbessr@gmail.com>, <kristenacasteel@gmail.com>, <of@aol.com>, <SaucedoA@mwrd.org>, 
<rebecca.j.boyd@gmail.com>, <ShoreD@mwrd.org>, <rprohov@paalaw.com> 
Subject: Re: [external] Request for meeting to Discuss the Highcrest Grove 

RE: "I know you have had great success in rallying residents; I have heard very little from those who are to benefit from 
stormwater relief. Perhaps this is an area where you can shine some light in reaching out to those impacted? " 
 
Julia Goebel  
Hello Ms. Goebel:   
 
Your email admits that you "have heard very little from those who are to benefit from stormwater relief."  This revelation 
should enlighten you and other park district board members of the profound fact that most of those you characterize as 
"impacted" have absolutely no interest in contacting you.  If the residents who you characterize as "impacted" thought 
they would derive any benefit from contacting you, they would contact you. Clearly, they don't.  
 

31



2

My husband and I've lived in Wilmette on Lawndale for 46 years, one block east of Ridge. Our basement flooded, so - at 
our expense - we installed a flood control system. I know some of our neighbors did the same. That our basement 
flooded, and that anyone's basement floods, is an entirely separate and different issue from that of destroying a grove of 
cottonwood trees. You are making an assumption when you imply that the residents who are contacting you, do not 
experience stormwater difficulties. If there is a factual basis for your assumption, please advise.  
 
My assumption is that some and even many residents DO experience stormwater difficulties and ALSO oppose 
destroying the cottonwood trees. These residents are smart enough to figure out that  chopping down 30+ stormwater 
absorbing trees and creating additional unneeded and and unwanted playing fields will NOT prevent their basements from 
flooding.  Living in a well educated, affluent, and reasonably sophisticated community, means that a substantial 
percentage of Wilmette residents, including the about  311 families whose basements are  the subject of the flooding 
project, are fully aware of the vital and irreplaceable roles played by trees, in this case, a grove of native cottonwood 
trees. And, some of the "impacted" residents are fully aware that the cottonwood trees (just like the prairie in Centennial 
Park) doubtless played a role in preventing flooded basements in Wilmette during the recent May and July storm 
episodes. And, some, possibly most, of the "impacted" residents do not support destroying trees to create unneeded and 
unwanted playing fields that no residents asked for, or to install stormwater holding tanks when alternative tree-free 
locations are very available and the project will even be less costly.   
 
Many of Wilmette's intelligent and educated residents  - including "impacted residents" - are aware of scientific and 
practical matters involving the environment. Most Wilmette residents know (and their children learn in Wilmette schools) 
that trees produce oxygen, which is essential to human life, including in Wilmette, in order to breathe. These trees include 
those growing in the cottonwood grove the Park District wants to eliminate. These Wilmette residents are offended by the 
Park District's refusal to make saving existing trees - and planting new trees - a priority. Many residents with children, and 
residents who are children, are shocked, horrified, disappointed and disgusted, by the Park District's inexplicable 
indifference and refusal to set an  enlightened,  practical, and contemporary example for youngsters and all the residents. 
The Park District is directly contradicting the school teachers, curriculum,  books and magazines, parents, scientific 
studies, and contemporary public policy that  respects  and protects trees and other irreplaceable natural 
ecosystems.  The Wilmette Park District has a duty to reform its backward view and policies. 
 
Park District Board: do you read the newspapers? If you do, did you ignore the May 2019 United Nations report 
advocating planting trees, locally and globally, to prevent a terrible worsening of global climate change? Global climate 
change, amazing as it may seem, will adversely effect even the residents of Wilmette!! "Local" includes Wilmette. Further, 
if you read newspapers, you are also aware of the recent scientific report in Science  Magazine similarly advocating 
immediate planting of MILLIONS of trees in order to avoid the worst that global climate change is expected to bring 
globally, including in Wilmette.  Planting trees excludes destroying trees, which exacerbates global climate change.    
 
Does the Wilmette Park District believe that Wilmette is an island that is immune to the disasters facing the rest of the 
globe? How provincial can Wilmette government be? What is the Wilmette Park District's  reaction to recent the scientific 
reports unanimously virtually begging the world - including Wilmette - to PLANT millions of trees that will absorb and 
sequester CO2 and help offset global climate change? What is the Wilmette Park District's reaction to the well known fact 
that destroying a tree releases sequestered CO2 into the atmosphere and exacerbates global climate change?  Answer: 
The Wilmette Park District chooses to ignore global climate change and instead focus on increasing playing fields (that 
are neither needed or wanted by Wilmette residents, the ones who pay taxes and administrators' salaries ). Wilmette 
insists on the destruction of a grove of trees and thus insists on releasing the trees' stored C02 into the atmosphere. This 
is, in a word, irresponsible.  
  
The upside is that productive approaches exist. You and those park district  board members who are determined to 
destroy the grove of cottonwood trees can and should pause and consider the reality that exists outside the insular 
universe called the Wilmette Park District Board. This reality includes the residents of Wilmette - who don't want expanded 
playing fields and have become aware that they have been conned - and a variety of scientific,  practical, enlightened, up-
to-date and contemporary facts and concepts that the Wilmette Park District Board has refused to consider.  
 
For the Park District Board to responsibly do its job requires becoming current on global warming and other well known 
scientific matters. The Park District Board undoubtedly recieved (but did they read, understand, and put into context?) the 
June 12, 2019 message from Debra Shore, a Metropolitan Water Reclamation District commissioner that 
she sent  thousands of district residents. Further, per Comm. Shore's request to "Bring your ideas to 
your local representatives and push for action," I forwarded her message to the Wilmette Trustees,  Park 
District Board, and other relevant Wilmette officials. Subsequently, I again sent Comm. Shore's view 

32



3

and ideas to the same governmental officials, and requested their responses. To date, not even one 
individual has replied.  
 
To be responsible, the Park District Board can and should invite Comm. Shore to testify before it at a 
public hearing.  
To be responsible, the Park District Board should incorporate Comm. Shore's comments and ideas, as follows:  

"By now many of you may have heard that the month of May was the wettest on record for northern 
Illinois since we started measuring rainfall in 1871, outstripping the prior record May for rainfall, which 
occurred just last year. Cook County recorded 8.25” of rain in May, roughly 20 percent of the total annual 
rainfall in one month!  During the month of May, the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District’s Tunnel 
and Reservoir system intercepted nearly 13.6 billion gallons of combined sewer overflows (CSOs). That’s 
sewage and waste water from our homes, businesses, and industries combined with rain washing over city 
streets collecting salt, oil, pet poop, brake dust, and fertilizer from lawns and gardens that otherwise 
would have flowed directly into nearby rivers and streams, polluting them significantly. From January 
through May 31, the Tunnel and Reservoir system captured 42.56 billion gallons of combined sewer 
overflows. Think about that: if that amount of water covered the surface area of Chicago, we’d be wading 
in 10.5” of stormwater mixed with sewage. Remarkably, given the record rains, there have been NO 
REVERSALS of CSOs to Lake Michigan since October 2017. 

 

Consider this: even though our region has 
been breaking rainfall records, we’ve avoided 
reversals to the lake, the Albany Park 
diversion tunnel has saved that area from 
flooding, and CSOs are down in number. The 
reason? The first phase of the McCook 
Reservoir, which can capture and hold 3.5 
billion gallons of CSOs, went online in 
December 2017. Thanks are due not only to 
huge pipes and tunnels, but also to the heroic 
efforts by MWRD staff to lower water levels 
in the Chicago Area Waterways system in 
advance of storms to give the system as much 
capacity as possible to capture stormwater. 
During the late May storms, the gates 
releasing water at MWRD’s Lockport 
Powerhouse were open as wide as possible and the flow recorded there was 20,000 cubic feet per second 
(cfs). By comparison, Chicago can legally withdraw only 3,200 cfs/day of freshwater from Lake 
Michigan. Here's a fascinating fact: one cubic foot of water weighs 62.5 lbs. Thus, the flow of 20,000 cfs 
at Lockport equaled 625 tons of water per second flowing through the Powerhouse gates. The high flows 
on the Chicago Waterways also brought commercial barge traffic to a standstill in recent months. 
Beginning on May 7th, the US Coast Guard halted barge traffic on the Illinois River (which receives 
flows from the Chicago Waterways). And our soils are soaked! The soil moisture in Cook County is now 
higher than 99 percent of the historical record, according to NOAA and the National Weather Service. 
Saturated soils mean much less capacity to absorb rain when it comes. The Great Lakes have responded 
to this record-setting weather as well. According the Army Corps of Engineers, which tracks Great Lakes 
water levels, Lake Erie and Lake Superior reached new monthly mean high water levels in May, and Lake 
Ontario surpassed its all-time record high level this week. As of the first week of June, Lake Michigan is 
13” above its average level and is expected to continue rising through this summer. Lake Michigan is 
currently just 2” below its all-time record height for June, set in 1986. 

 

 

33



4

What’s to be done with all this water? First, 
expect the unprecedented. Predictions for the 
climate crisis in northeastern Illinois include 
more intense, less predictable rain and 
snowstorms. These are likely to be our new 
normal. Consider this conundrum: warmer air 
here in Illinois means more water evaporates 
and coalesces into violent storms, while warmer 
air in the Arctic destabilizes the jet stream, 
leading the Great Lakes to freeze over and lake 
levels to rise when the ice melts. Cook County 
sits at the crux of these forces, with all the 
variability that entails.  
 
Second, let’s do everything we can to give the 
land more absorptive capacity. We should 
install rain gardens, bioswales, permeable 
pavement, and green roofs everywhere we can to capture rain and keep it out of the sewers. But we 
may also need to un-finish our basements and expect them to take on water now and 
then -- the way things used to be. (A harsh reality, I know, but we live in a flat, wet 
world. There’s no downhill to move water away from us.) Finally, let’s get creative about ways 
to capture (and reuse) rain. Let's think about repurposing rail tank cars for stormwater capture next to big 
box stores and warehouses. Let's install community cisterns block by block and re-green vacant lots as 
wetlands. Let's convert parkway patches into prairie grass stands. Bring your ideas to your local 
representatives and push for action. Folks, we need all hands on deck because we’re taking on water!" 
(Emphasis in red added by Adelman)

 

 

 
                   After years of being subjected to Village and Park District promises of relief due to the stormwater project, the 
truth leaked out, as the stormwater project was revealed to be a project to increase the size of playing fields.  After being 
subjected to YEARS of presentations on the bait of relief from flooding,  the Park District SWITCHED and admitted and 
declared its true goal is EXPANDING the playing fields (that no residents want) . This bait and switch follows years of 
duplicative hearings by the Village and the Park District - with residents expected to attend in good faith, be informed 
about the details of various alternative plans and their respective costs, and make intelligent comments when repeatedly 
solicited by  the village governments which governments then ignore, meet with the engineers and examine maps and 
learn how the flood control project work, be told Centennial Park was the perfect site until it was not. Be told Community 
Playfield is the perfect site for a stormwater tank, except for its annoying groves of trees which must be removed, NOT to 
provide better stormwater relief but to ADD playing fields.  Residents are skeptical about the Park District's motives and 
sincerity in insisting on destroying cottonwood trees for this stormwater project which has been re purposed into an 
increased playfield project. The bait and switch follows years of residents being implored to read glossy documents (paid 
for no doubt by WIlmette taxpayers) sent to each resident to persuade him or her of the desperate need for an 
expensive  FLOOD PLAN. Exposure to years of public relations efforts for stormwater relief that turned out to be a front 
for unnecessarily increasing Park District play fields explains residents' lack of faith in the park district and their cynicism 
about its representations about a wonderful flood-free future. What's the point in contacting Park District Board members 
whose statements of purpose are inconsistent? Many of the exhausted "beneficiaries"  probably have by now become 
aware that they will never receive the promised relief and when that fact becomes clear, it will be too late to take 
retributive action.  Based on Park District broken and changing representations, many "beneficiaries" know there is 
nothing to be gained by continuously-for-years contacting the village authorities, including the park district board. .  
 
Further, and importantly, the flood plan is out of date. As global climate change becomes a reality, responsible people with 
relevant responsibilities are tasked with facing and creating based on new and continuously changing information and 
evidence, new assumptions about what the future may bring. Spending millions of taxpayers' dollars on a system based 
on old data and old assumptions is a waste of resdients' money and a betrayal of their trust in government. The Wilmette 
Park District has a moral and legal duty not to proceed on outdated  assumptions and information, even if it did spend vast 
sums over several years, accumulating  and publicizing them. Both the Wilmette Park District and the Village of WIlmette 

34



5

have the duty of accessing Comm. Shore's assistance, and obtaining,  studying, and incorporating  Stormwater and 
Flooding, Dec 2017. 
 https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/documents/10180/653821/FY18-
0051+STORMWATER+AND+FLOODING_FINAL.pdf/42e7f8b1-c9ed-b7b5-0eeb-a03f4a51dee7  
 
Thank you for your response and for your attention to my letter. 
 
Best wishes,  
 
Charlotte Adelman  
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Rick Prohov <rprohov@paalaw.com> 
To: Julia Goebel <jgoebel@wilpark.org> 
Cc: Herbert H. Engelhard <friendsofhighcrestgrove@gmail.com>; praj.shah@creospan.com <praj.shah@creospan.com>; 
Bielinski, Bob <bielinskib@wilmette.com>; Martha Hellander <mhellander1@comcast.net>; awolfe@wilpark.org 
<awolfe@wilpark.org>; ganderson@wilpark.org <ganderson@wilpark.org>; babbott@wilpark.org <babbott@wilpark.org>; 
mmurdock@wilpark.org <mmurdock@wilpark.org>; Cecilia Clarke <cclarke@wilpark.org>; jgoebel@wilpark.org 
<jgoebel@wilpark.org>; Todd Shissler <tshissler@wilpark.org>; Faye Jacobs <frjacobs@comcast.net>; E. Engelhard 
<eengel@sbcglobal.net>; derekcasteel@gmail.com <derekcasteel@gmail.com>; Julia Grosh <jmarran3@sbcglobal.net>; 
Jim Grosh <lightkpr3@sbcglobal.net>; Deborah <dviktora@comcast.net>; csadel1@aol.com <csadel1@aol.com>; 
Berger, Brigitte <bergerb@wilmette.com>; swilson@wilpark.org <swilson@wilpark.org>; joelforwilmette@gmail.com 
<joelforwilmette@gmail.com>; barrowp@wilmette.com <barrowp@wilmette.com>; doddk@wilmette.com 
<doddk@wilmette.com>; kennedyg@wilmette.com <kennedyg@wilmette.com>; sullivand@wilmette.com 
<sullivand@wilmette.com>; kurzmanj@wilmette.com <kurzmanj@wilmette.com>; plunketts@wilmette.com 
<plunketts@wilmette.com>; bielinskib@wilmette.com <bielinskib@wilmette.com>; eric@wilmettebeacon.com 
<eric@wilmettebeacon.com>; Ted Prohov <t_prohov02@yahoo.com>; Van Economou <Van@EconomouIP.com>; 
Robert Besser <rbessr@gmail.com>; Kristen Casteel <kristenacasteel@gmail.com> 
Sent: Fri, Aug 9, 2019 12:53 pm 
Subject: RE: [external] Request for meeting to Discuss the Highcrest Grove 

Ms. Goebel 
 
Thanks for your reply.  
 
I am also not yet retired and also have many professional and other commitments as well. 
 
I regret you will not have time to discuss the issues with us before the meeting Monday but will look forward to seeing you 
there Monday evening.  
 
In your response to my for a request for a meeting, you noted:  "I know you have had great success in rallying residents; I 
have heard very little from those who are to benefit from stormwater relief.  
                                    Perhaps this is an area where you can shine some light in reaching out to those impacted?" 
 
Last time I checked, the charge for Intergovernmental cooperation now rests upon the shoulders of the Park District to 
work with the Village administration for Public Works as far as storm water relief is concerned on the matter at hand. 
Since the MOU and draft of an Intergovernmental Agreement is what seems to be what is being pushed along this month 
by the Park Commissioners and the Village Trustees, apparently there have been insufficient meetings among those 
respective governing bodies for you to be fully informed of the many years of study of the matter. 
 
Since the homes among our members have never suffered from storm water damages, I do not know those that do but 
would welcome the opportunity to meet with them as well.   
 
I believe face to face meetings are still the most productive form of communication.  Your public meetings do not afford 
that opportunity. 
 
I do know that the Village engineers and their consultants have struggled for many years to determine how to best 
address the  storm water management those citizens that do suffer flooding.  I have only read the relevant information that 

35



6

is available on the Village Website as I am certain you have as well.  My only information to date on the extent of the 
flooding issues has been gleaned from those reports.  Since I have not been allowed to meet with the consulting 
engineers or ask them questions, I suggest you start with them rather than thinking I can shine any light for you on these 
engineering issues.   
 
The engineers have studied the source of the storm water problems, considered the matter at great expenses for years 
and provided numerous iterations and cost estimates for various alternatives.  It is that process that brought your 
"consensus" to cut the trees and threaten our homes. 
 
Since we cannot meet before Monday when I cannot ask questions and have only three minutes for "comments,"  I will 
look forward to hearing what cooperative efforts your board has made to reach out to the Village Board to develop your 
understanding of the storm water concerns before you could possibly discuss any viable memorandum towards a valid 
agreement. 
 
Respectfully yours, 
 
Rick Prohov 
 
 
 
Rick 
  
Fredric B. Prohov, J.D., CM&AA, LEED AP 
  
Prohov & Associates, Ltd. 
134 North LaSalle Street – Suite 2100 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Phone:         (312) 807 - 3965 
Cell Phone:  (312) 925 – 5444 
  
Email:     rprohov@paalaw.com 
  
www.paalaw.com   
  
Confidentiality Notice: 
  
This electronic mail message and any attached files contain information intended for the exclusive use of the individual or 
entity to whom it is addressed.  Such message may contain information that is proprietary, privileged, confidential and/or 
exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
viewing, copying, disclosure or distribution of this information may be subject to legal restriction or sanction.  Please notify 
sender, by electronic mail or telephone, of any unintended recipients and delete the original message without making 
copies. 
  
Circular 230 Disclosures: 
  
Pursuant to regulations Governing Practice before the Internal Revenue Service, any tax advice contained herein is not 
intended or written to be used and cannot be used by a taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax penalties that may be 
imposed upon the taxpayer.  
 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Julia Goebel <jgoebel@wilpark.org>  
Sent: Thursday, August 8, 2019 10:33 AM 
To: Rick Prohov <rprohov@paalaw.com> 
Subject: Re: [external] Request for meeting to Discuss the Highcrest Grove 
 
Hello Mr. Prohov,  
 
Thank you for your outreach and emails. I appreciate the urgency about the matter and take this very seriously.  
 

36



7

This week is difficult for me to meet as we have a family reunion as well as professional commitments of mine.  
 
So I will look forward to the discussion on the 12th and the 19th; I am eager to hear from a wide range of resident voices, 
especially those impacted by flooding personally.  
 
I know you have had great success in rallying residents; I have heard very little from those who are to benefit from 
stormwater relief.  
 
Perhaps this is an area where you can shine some light in reaching out to those impacted?  
 
Thanks very much for your continued dialog, 
 
Julia Goebel 
 
 
____________________________ 
 
Julia Goebel 
 
Commissioner 
Wilmette Park District 
jgoebel@wilpark.org 
 
 
On Aug 6, 2019, at 5:32 PM, Rick Prohov <rprohov@paalaw.com> wrote: 
 
Dear Park Board Commissioners  
 
We now have 464 local Wilmette signatures adding their voices to save the trees in the Highcrest Grove and accept an 
alternative plan at significantly less taxpayer cost. 
 
In our meeting with Mr. Wilson last week, he acknowledged that there is no current nor near-term foreseeable demand for 
more playing fields.  He explained that the Park Board regards the Community Playfields as an "asset" with a primary 
function that its name implies.  It is still a park.  It is not used even close to every day of the year for that "function."  A park 
is generally defined as "an area of natural, semi-natural or planted space set aside for human enjoyment and recreation or 
for the protection of wildlife or natural habitats."  As far as at least 464 of your constituents have always known, the area is 
still a park and needs to serve more than sporting recreational playfield purposes.  Within 40 acres there is no justifiable 
need to limit it like this.  When asked about it at that same meeting, Mr. Wilson would not rule out an installation of astro-
turf if it was being considered as an option should the trees come down given the contemplated concrete tank that would 
be under the surface.  If any of you share that vision for the maximization of field utility as you described last month, we 
wish to know.   
 
Since we are diametrically opposed to this type of development in the park, we wish to better understand why any of you 
still would side with the 5 to 2 consensus positions stated in your 7/8 board meeting.  In the case of Mr. Abbott and Mr. 
Anderson, we would welcome a meeting with either of you as well to see if you have any update on any efforts to 
persuade your fellow board members to come to see the issue the way each of you expressed your views at the last 
meeting. 
 
Please let me know when any of you, individually, or more than one collectively, would be able to make yourself available 
for a meeting later this week in Wilmette on a day and at a time and place that would be convenient for you.  Depending 
on the day and time, more than one of us would likely wish to attend such a meeting this week. 
 
I look forward to a written reply from each of you at your earliest convenience. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rick Prohov, on behalf of Friends of Highcrest Grove, Inc. 
Cell No. 312 925 5444 
 
https://www.thepetitionsite.com/119/992/219/save-the-trees-in-highcrest-grove-no-floods-no-destruction/ 
464 SUPPORTERS in Wilmette | 864 SUPPORTERS 

37



8

 
Naomi F. Illinois 9 hours ago 
I grew up playing soccer on those fields, having gym class on those fields, and going on bike rides along there. Would be 
such a shame to do the plan that has to cut all the trees rather than the alternatives that do not! 
Elizabeth T. Illinois 13 hours ago 
I grew up on Meadow Drive and my back yard faced the park. I looked at those trees every day for 49 years. Please do 
not chop down these beautiful trees! That would be a disgrace! 
Mark and Christine K.  Illinois 18 hours ago Old growth trees are an irreplaceable asset to the Village of Wilmette. As long 
time Wilmette residents (and in my case, born and raised here), we are appalled that these trees would be cut down when 
better alternatives exist for building the storm water tank. These alternative plans represent a win-win solution for this 
issue. Save the 31 trees that provide so many benefits to the area, and build storm water treatment tanks that are 
affordable and effective. We urge the Park Board to save the Highcrest Tree Grove! 
name not displayed Illinois a day ago 
I want to save the trees near the school. Trees are essential to our environment. 
name not displayed Illinois a day ago 
There IS a better way to manage the storm water: use it! Our children need those trees for shade, for beauty, for 
memories, for learning to respect and love the outdoors. We need those trees for air quality, soil retention, carbon dioxide 
removal and water absorption. Don't destroy these beautiful trees that we cannot replace! 
name not displayed Illinois a day ago The height of the trees cannot be replaced The amount of water they soak up The 
beauty in the winter Tracie T. Illinois 2 days ago Those trees are a beautiful part of the Community Playfields. They 
provide shade during soccer and XCountry, and give the fields a look of having been around for a long time! How could 
you even think of cutting them down???? 
C R. Illinois 2 days ago 
There must be a better way 
name not displayed 
Illinois 
2 days ago 
The trees provided shade and beauty to the area and it's environmentally important. 
name not displayed 
Illinois 
2 days ago 
Preservation of natural resources. It seems to me that I’m an area with such heavy pedestrian usage, that the Board 
would entertain and seriously consider alternate locations. 
KAY G. 
Illinois 
2 days ago 
The trees add beauty, shade and act as a natural storage for excess water. The trees add more to the park than another 
soccer field. Don't remove the grove of trees. 
Jeremy F. 
Illinois 
3 days ago 
I grew up playing in those trees while playing soccer in the park or during gym class. Find a solution that doesn’t destroy a
whole grove of old trees. 
Carla F. 
Illinois 
3 days ago 
Trees are vital to our environment. Terrible thing to teach children to cut down trees. Soccer fields can be handled in other 
ways if needed in the future. 
Charlotte F. 
Illinois 
4 days ago 
I used to play tag and capture the flag between those trees! 
Jesse R. 
Illinois 
4 days ago 
I love trees 
Joseph G. 
Illinois 
5 days ago 

38



9

Grew up on Laurel near community playfield and spent my childhood playing under those trees Tom V. Illinois 6 days ago 
It will destroy the park, one of the most valuable assets of Wilmette Nico V.  Illinois 6 days ago I grew up with those trees I 
remember running around between them playing with friends in school and out. As well as during summer camps. 
name not displayed 
Illinois 6 days ago 
Why to kill such a majestic tree? It is unacceptable. Find another solution. 
Robin S. Illinois 6 days ago 
Because trees do so much for the environment. 
Peggy C. Illinois 6 days ago 
I've enjoyed the shade these trees provide at hot, sunny soccer games. I'd like to learn more about the more affordable 
plan that includes saving these trees. Cutting them down seems suspiciously senseless. 
Lesley H.  Illinois 7 days ago 
Tragic to cut down old growth trees! 
Helen A. Illinois 7 days ago 
Saving trees is the right thing to do! 
Brian M.  Illinois  7 days ago 
Conservation of trees. For the sake of beauty. Because alternatives which do not destroy trees should be chosen. 
Thomas M.  Illinois 7 days ago 
I have played in this grove since I was very young and I don’t want to see it cut down because it is such an essential part 
of the landscape and the way it ties the whole area together. Plus, capture the flag is dope. 
Cathie W.  Illinois 8 days ago 
environmental reasons. there are other viable options I believe without destroying valuable natural habitat. 
Carol R. Illinois 8 days ago 
The trees help clean the air, provide a home for birds and other living creatures, create shade and beauty and enhance 
our community. Don't cut them down! 
Edith R.  Illinois 8 days ago 
Needless destruction of environmentally attractive and proven way to manage water. Other options are available. 
name not displayed Illinois 8 days ago 
I grew up playing in these fields around these trees and it would be a shame to see them taken down before future 
generations get the chance to :(♥ Cathy R. Illinois 8 days ago The natural plants attract more birds and insects, as I have 
found in my own yard. 
Richard F. Illinois 8 days ago 
save the tress for my grandchildren who live in Wilmette and attend Highcrest! 
Brigitte G.  Illinois 8 days ago 
For the Wilmette Park District and the Village of Wilmette to even entertain plans to clear-cut an entire grove of mature 
trees in our Village of Wilmette is irresponsible and destructive. Trees contribute to saving nature and ultimately saving 
the environment. Not only does this grove of trees provide shade for the many families during soccer games and family 
outings, but also absorbs the greenhouse gases to provide clean air for all of us. It's time for the representatives of the 
Village of Wilmette to re-think about ways to save our own climate and our world environment, as well as the money of 
those who live in the Village of Wilmette. Let's do better to think outside this grove of trees for a more practical and 
affordable solution. 
Mary B.  Illinois 8 days ago 
I thought Wilmette was called Tree City? 
freed c. Illinois 8 days ago 
Trees good for the environment. Please find a way to save even if it costs us more. 
Barbara K.  Illinois 9 days ago 
Saving mature trees should be a top priority for the village. 
Tad G.  Illinois 9 days ago 
I believe this is ill-conceived and overly costly. 
name not displayed Illinois 9 days ago 
Home to many animals! Save the trees! 
Mhairi P.  Illinois 9 days ago 
In a world where areas of quiet shaded space are disappearing, I demand an alternate solution to clearing all the trees 
from the Highest Grove. I am a resident that uses the park daily - weekends and weekdays. I never see all the fields in 
use and wonder about the necessity of additional play areas? Who does this benefit and who will pay for it? 
Katie D.  Illinois 9 days ago 
tons of kids play in these trees during events and they are beautiful and hard to replace Paul T.  Illinois 9 days ago With 
climate change as one of our most pressing threats, the decision to cut down a huge stand of old growth trees, which are 
a wonderful carbon sink, is irresponsible. We should do the environmentally responsible thing and protect our trees. 
Sarah T.  Illinois 9 days ago 

39



10

A grove of old growth trees should not be cut down. They are invaluable in an age of rising temperatures and provide 
shade and beauty to Wilmette. 
Gary P.  Illinois 9 days ago 
Preservation of Forests 
Linda s.  Illinois 9 days ago 
Maintaining trees in our community is a critical step to help offset impending climate disaster. Don’t teach kids it’s ok to 
tear down healthy, living trees. Teach everyone to conserve and preserve! 
Laurie M.  Illinois 10 days ago 
During the current climate crisis, we cannot squander any of our natural resources, especially trees that take CO2 out of 
the atmosphere & produce oxygen. DO NOT CUT DOWN THESE TREES!!!! 
Julie R.  Illinois 10 days ago 
I don’t want our beautiful old trees cut down!!! The trees make Wilmette the quaint charming town that it is! It also 
detrimental to our ecosystem. Please reconsider this bad decision to cut down so many trees. Julie Robbins Krissy 
W.  Illinois 10 days ago It’s trees!! Shade, wild animals! 
Kara K.  Illinois 10 days ago 
My daughters relish the shade of those trees at recess, gym, cross country practice, and playing with their friends. They 
are already removing other large, old trees inside the Highcrest courtyard as part of the HMS learning commons 
expansion. What are we teaching our children, the next generations, about the importance of green space? The benefits 
of trees to our environment and general health? About shortsighted decisions vs finding creative solutions. The 
community playfields are much larger than just this grove and surely alternatives are possible. 
Donna M.  Illinois 10 days ago 
Trees offer needed shade to the students and sports teams. There is an another option for placement and installation of 
the storm water underground tank. Use that other option. Leave the trees where they are. It takes decades for a beautiful 
tree to mature as these have. Choose the plan that is more affordable, saves taxpayer money, and SAVES the grove of 
trees at Highcrest. 
Sally V.  Illinois 10 days ago 
Mature trees need to be preserved whenever possible, always.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rick Prohov, on behalf of Friends of Highcrest Grove, Inc. 
 
Fredric B. Prohov, J.D., CM&AA, LEED AP 
 
Prohov & Associates, Ltd. 
134 North LaSalle Street – Suite 2100 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Phone:        (312) 807 - 3965 
Cell Phone:  (312) 925 – 5444 
 
Email:    rprohov@paalaw.com 
 
www.paalaw.com   
 
Confidentiality Notice: 
 
This electronic mail message and any attached files contain information intended for the exclusive use of the individual or 
entity to whom it is addressed.  Such message may contain information that is proprietary, privileged, confidential and/or 
exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
viewing, copying, disclosure or distribution of this information may be subject to legal restriction or sanction.  Please notify 
sender, by electronic mail or telephone, of any unintended recipients and delete the original message without making 
copies. 
 
Circular 230 Disclosures: 
 
Pursuant to regulations Governing Practice before the Internal Revenue Service, any tax advice contained herein is not 
intended or written to be used and cannot be used by a taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding tax penalties that may be 
imposed upon the taxpayer.  
 
 

40



 
 

 
ADDITIONAL  

COMMUNICATIONS & 
CORRESPONDENCE  
For August 19, 2019 

Special Board Meeting 
 

(received after packet was originally posted) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



















































































































































11

 

41



Memorandum 
 
 

Date: August 15, 2019 
 

To: Board of Park Commissioners 
 
From: Steve Wilson, Executive Director 

 
  Cc:  Emily Guynn 

Steve Holloway 
Jerry Ulrich 

 
Re: Storm Water Questions and Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

 
 

This memo is a summary of the questions asked by various Commissioners as well as answers 
from various sources.  After all the attachments related to the questions, you will find a 
resolution authorizing the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), as well as the MOU and the 
associated exhibits.  If anyone has any further questions, please let me know. 
 

1. Question – The “Original” storm water vault configuration includes a separate chamber 
to take in, hold, and release storm water in accordance with the MWRD permit for the 
surface detention area located near Highcrest, but the other options do not.  In the 
event that another configuration was preferred, how much would it cost to add a 
separate chamber to the other options? 

Answer – Estimates provided by the Village of Wilmette indicate that the cost to 
Excavate and install a secondary underground detention vault is approximately 
$960,000.  In addition to this, the estimate cost to restore the ground above the 
secondary vault with backfill, topsoil and seed is about $180,000.  Lastly, it is estimated 
by the Village that if the area outside of the secondary vault was restored to create 
additional playfields, the cost would be approximately $360,000.  Therefore, the table 
below illustrates the impact of these costs if a secondary vault were added to other 
configurations to create a similar tank system to the “Original” configuration. 
 

Tank Configuration Initial Cost

Cost for 
Secondary 
Vault and 

Restoration Subtotal

Additional 
Restoration 

to Create 
Additional 

Fields Total
Variance to 

Original
Original Configuration 11,730,000 -                   11,730,000 -                   11,730,000 -                   
Z Shaped Configuration 11,430,000 1,140,000   12,570,000 360,000      12,930,000 1,200,000   
Gravity+Pump Configuration 9,880,000   1,140,000   11,020,000 360,000      11,380,000 (350,000)      
 

42



2. Question – When was the initial detention area installed behind Highcrest, are there 
storm water inlets and pipes below the surface, and will it need to be maintained and by 
whom? 

Answer – Attached to this memo, marked Exhibit A, is the original MWRD permit for the 
detention area.  The permit is dated as approved October 9, 2000.  On page 34 of 51, 
there is a written explanation of the existing and proposed conditions that outlines the 
sewers involved in the project.  Also, in the Special Considerations section of the permit, 
item number 5 states that an agreement between District 39 and the Wilmette Park 
District is to be attached.  That agreement governs the use of property between the two 
entities, and outlines that the School District is solely responsible for the upkeep and 
proper function of the storm water system governed by this permit.  

 
3. Question – At one point, the Village of Wilmette made mention of a fire that was started 

near Community Playfields due to cottonwood seedlings being ignited.  Is that true and 
is it documented? 
 
Answer – Attached to this memo, marked as Exhibit B, is the Wilmette Fire Department 
Incident report for a fire started by cottonwood seeds being ignited.  This is on 
Washington near Ridge Road and is not likely related to the cottonwood trees located at 
Community Playfields.  In addition to this report, in Gillson Park I have witnessed the fire 
department respond to cottonwood seeds on fire near the tennis courts.  There was 
also another incident at Gillson where a father tried to show his son how flammable 
cottonwood seeds were by tossing a lit cigarette into a pile of seeds and caused a fire he 
was unable to extinguish causing the fire department to respond and the individual 
being charged by the Wilmette Police Department. 

 
4. Question – Can you please provide to the board the estimated ages and condition of the 

cottonwood trees in Community Playfields? 
 
Answer – Attached to this memo, marked as Exhibit C, is a memo from the Village of 
Wilmette in which many questions are asked and answered.  Specifically, question 6 
located on page 3 of 16, outlines that the ages of the trees range from 35 to 120 years 
old and that their condition is generally from fair to good with 1 to 2 trees that should 
be considered for removal or extensive pruning.  The memo also goes onto state that 
the Village does not plant cottonwood trees in parkways due to them being “more 
susceptible to branch failures in storms as cottonwood wood is brittle and weak.” The 
memo also states that cottonwood trees live to be on average about 60 years old with 
some rare cases of living to be 100 years old. 

 
 
 
 

43



5. Question – Does the above ground storm water detention that exists at Community 
Playfields potentially lead to a higher rate of breeding mosquitos? 
 
Answer – Attached to this memo, marked as Exhibits D and E, are information sheets 
obtained from the Center for Disease Control (CDC) and the American Mosquito Control 
Association (AMCA), respectively, regarding the breeding of mosquitos.  After reviewing 
these two pieces of information, my understanding is that eggs can be laid in water or 
out of water, and can survice extended periods of dry conditions.  The eggs do need 
water to hatch, and do so in 24 to 48 hours after being submerged by water.  Once the 
egg hatches, the larva spends about 5 days in water while it grows into a pupa.  
Therefore, if there is standing water for about a week’s time, eggs can hatch and 
progress pass the larva stage to the pupa stage, at which time the mosquito pupa leaves 
the water. 

 
6. Question – What is the size of the park at Avoca that WPD no longer has an agreement 

to operate with D37, what types and how many fields were located there, and what is 
the space of the area at Community Playfields that could become field space? 
 
Answer – The park at Avoca is 8 acres and housed 4 soccer fields of varying size.  Per the 
permit with the MWRD, the area of the detention at Community Playfields is just over 
3.5 acres.  
 

7. Question – If the cottonwood trees are removed and level fields are created in the area 
that currently serves as a detention area, what sort of fields could be added? 
 
Answer – Attached to this memo, marked as Exhibit F, illustrates a few possibilities.  If 
the space is an open field, there are many possible uses and configurations for fields 
throughout the years and seasons as the demand for various sports come and go.  
Therefore, to be clear, these examples are simply examples, not proposals, and not the 
only options. 

 
8. Question – Many residents have voiced a concern about the ecological impact of the 

removal of the cottonwood trees.  Is there a way to provide additional landscaping to 
Community Playfields that provides the same, and preferably better, ecological impact 
than the cottonwood trees? 
 
Answer – A professional landscape planner can work with the District as well as 
members of the community to explore and possibly achieve a landscape plan that 
achieves such an outcome. 
 

 
 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



 
Date: June 26, 2019  
 
To: Steve Wilson, Executive Director, Wilmette Park District  
   
From:  Brigitte Ann Berger-Raish, P.E., Director of Engineering and Public Works 
  
 

Subject: Neighborhood Storage Project—Responses to Questions  
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to provide responses to the Park Board and 
resident questions that arose at and following the June 10 meeting.   Village staff and 
the consulting team will be available on July 8 for the next Park Board meeting to 
answer any additional questions.   

1. Is a backup generator required or can an offsite mobile generator solution be 
employed?  

The Village believes a permanent generator is the best solution because of the 
immediate ability to run the pumps in the event of a power outage.  There are 
various installation options that could reduce the size of a structure, or eliminate 
it altogether, with the permanent generator screened by landscaping.  The 
Village of Kenilworth water pumping station located at the corner of Ashland 
Lane and Kenilworth Avenue is an example of a well-screened generator.  A 
mobile generator can also provide the power needed to run the pump station in 
the event of a power outage.  A conservative estimate would require a generator 
capable of producing 100 Kilowatts of power to operate each pump station.  The 
same generator could be used at all three sites if pump stations are required.  
These are commonly found as self-contained trailer units (see attachment 1).     

2. Please provide further detail on weekly, monthly, periodic and annual 
maintenance requirements for both a gravity fed vault and a vault with a pump 
and generator.   

Vault:  Annual inspection and cleaning 

Pump stations: 

• Weekly – Visually inspect pump station and buildings 

• Monthly/Post-Storm – Check wet well, discharge chamber, and 
backflow preventers for debris; Open pump hatches to visually 

98

mailto:bergerb@wilmette.com


inspect pumps, casing, cable connections, and impellers; verify 
pump operation 

• Annually – Clean wet well, discharge chamber, and backflow 
preventers; full pump maintenance including calibration of 
sensors/floats and oil change 

• Approximately every 20 years – pump replacement 

Generator: 

• Weekly – Exercise for 30-60 minutes 

• Monthly/Post-Storm – Check engine oil and coolant levels; check 
air filters 

• Annually – Check belts and hoses; clean cooling system; 
Inspect/replace spark plugs, oxygen sensor, and AC generator 
system 

• Approximately every 25 years – generator replacement 

3. What are the anticipated costs for the ongoing maintenance for both vault 
concepts?  

A planning level cost for pump system operation and maintenance is $20,000 per 
year for each pump station.  This cost includes annual operation and 
maintenance, pump replacement every 20 years, and generator replacement 
every 25 years.   

4. Please explain why there are varied cost estimates for pumps across different 
designs.  

The varied cost estimate was an error in the spreadsheet.  All pumps are 
conservatively estimated at $750,000, which includes the pump station, electrical 
controls, an emergency backup generator, and a structure enclosing the pump 
station.  An updated Appendix 2 with the cost estimates is attached.  (Attachment 
2).  

5. Is there an anticipated negative impact to the trees and grasses in the parks due 
to the tanks taking water too efficiently?   

The trees in the park thrive in both dry and wet conditions and should not be 
impacted by the vault – according to the Village’s Foresters.  Depending on the 
final design and the thickness of cover over the vault, it is possible that the areas 
above the tanks may not hold moisture sufficient for healthy grass.  In this case 
more frequent watering, generally via an irrigation system, may be required.  
Maintaining healthy grass cover is possible and has been done successfully at 
other locations.  Final engineering efforts will include assessment of the site 
drainage and ensuring the ability for the proposed vegetation to thrive.    

99



6. Can the Village forester provide an estimate of the age of the cottonwood trees at 
Community Playfields as well as an average life for the particular species of tree?  

The foresters reviewed the 33 cottonwood trees and determined their ages range 
from as young as 35 years old to upwards of 120 years old.  With a basic level 
inspection, most trees are at least in fair to good condition, although there are 1 
to 2 trees within the grove that could be considered for removal or at minimum 
extensive pruning.  The species is native to the area and are some of the fastest 
growing, larger diameter trees to be found in Wilmette.   They can withstand and 
thrive in dry to wet soils.  The Forestry Division does not plant eastern 
cottonwoods on its parkways as they are more susceptible to branch failure in 
storms as cottonwood wood is brittle and weak.   

In addition to the cottonwood grove, there are two large diameter trees that would 
be impacted with the “Z” gravity configuration.  The foresters reviewed the 
conditions of these trees and determined they are in good health and structure.  
One of the trees is 57” in diameter breast height (DBH) and the other is 44” DBH.     

The foresters indicate that cottonwoods are a relatively short-lived species that 
on average can live up to 60 years of age, and in rare cases 100 years in a 
parkway setting. 

7. If the new vault configurations at Thornwood Park is moved further west, would 
that add more money to the project or make the tank operate less efficiently?   

The vault could be moved further west with nominal change to the project cost.  
The current westerly limits are set to both avoid having to completely replace the 
backstops (as able) and also to avoid removing the trees between the two 
baseball fields (near the eastern limits of the northern baseball field backstop).  
Therefore, moving the vault limits further west would likely result in the removal 
of additional trees. 

8. Can the inlet for the alternative designs at Thornwood be moved north towards 
the existing playground?   

The inlet is recommended to remain in the southeast corner of the park.  Moving 
the inlet to the north would greatly increase the cost by increasing the length of 
large diameter storm sewer.   

9. Is there a solution that has a pumped tank under the southern baseball field at 
Hibbard Park and what the tree impact would be.   

There are options to utilize more of the southern baseball field for underground 
stormwater storage.  This area was not originally considered as it impedes into 
the area identified by the Park District’s architect as potential area for future 
building expansion.  The attached conceptual exhibit shows how a pumped (15’ 
deep) detention vault could fit under the south baseball field.  (Attachment 3) 

10. The memo from Baxter & Woodman states that if the original proposed 
configuration is utilized (the rectangular vault under the cottonwood trees), this 100



would remove the existing detention basin. The removal of this basin would 
require an additional storage vault to be built adjacent to the proposed 
rectangular vault. Why is this additional vault necessary? Wouldn't the 
rectangular vault be sufficient to handle the water that settles in the detention 
basin?   

The existing detention basin is designed specifically for the school district to 
mitigate the increase in runoff from past school construction projects in 
accordance with MWRD permitting requirements.  The design of the existing 
detention basin includes a control structure to accommodate a specific release 
rate (the maximum flow rate allowed) defined in the MWRD permit.  The existing 
MWRD permit will not allow the flow rate to be increased. The possibility of 
combining flood storage with the existing detention storage in a new facility was 
discussed during a team meeting with MWRD staff.  MWRD staff indicated that to 
be compliant with the existing permit for the school, the detention facility would 
need to operate separately from the flood storage component of the system to 
maintain the allowable release rate from the school.   In order to combine the 
existing detention facility with our proposed stormwater storage vault, we would 
have to maintain the required release rate for that portion of the detention 
storage volume in the overall basin.  This release rate would not allow the much 
larger proposed stormwater storage volume to drain down within an acceptable 
duration; and is therefore not considered an option. 

11. If the additional vault is needed to handle the amount of water generated during a 
storm, why wouldn't the rectangular vault be increased to include that additional 
storage space? Is this a separate vault or is it a build out of the rectangular vault? 
How will water be directed into this additional storage vault?  

The rectangular vault configuration could be expanded to accommodate the 
runoff from the school property separately.  However, as stated above, a 
separate chamber within the overall vault would be required to meet the MWRD 
permit requirements.  If the two storage areas were combined into one and 
separated by chambers, runoff from the school property would be directed to the 
associated chamber separately from the flood storage component of the vault. 

12. According to the Baxter & Woodman memo, Alternative Configuration 1, the “Z” 
shaped vault will not require the construction of an additional vault and will leave 
the existing detention basin in place. Does that mean that the area around the 
cottonwoods will continue to pond water as it currently does? If it will continue to 
pond water will that affect the field conditions in the rest of the park? (I assume 
that ponding in the existing detention basin will not affect the rest of the park and 
that the standing water in the southerly portions of the park will drain into the Z 
shaped vault -- but I would like to confirm that).  

The existing detention basin within the cottonwood grove will remain intact and 
continue to function as it currently does.  The proposed vault will be hydraulically 
separate from the existing detention basin.  It is expected that drainage 

101



improvements in the park will be included, to some extent, with the construction 
of the vault. 

13. What is the expected life-span of the concrete vault?   

The vendor states that the concrete vaults have a minimum design life of 100 
years. 

14. Efficacy of utilizing Avoca as a storage site for Kenilworth Gardens.   

An additional 5,600 linear feet of large diameter storm sewer would be required 
to convey the excess stormwater that floods the low streets in Kenilworth 
Gardens into an underground stormwater storage vault at Avoca Park and then 
back into the existing trunk line storm sewer system.  Given the unit prices in the 
current engineer’s estimate of probable cost, this would add approximately $9M-
$10M to the project cost.   

15. Efficacy of utilizing Centennial Park as a storage site for Kenilworth Gardens.   

 Centennial Park drains to the Wilmette Avenue trunk line storm sewer system 
and Kenilworth Gardens drains to the Lake Avenue trunk line storm sewer 
system.  The excess stormwater that floods the low streets in Kenilworth 
Gardens would have to be conveyed in a large diameter storm sewer to an 
underground storage vault in Centennial Park.  This water would also have to be 
conveyed back to the Lake Avenue storm sewer system to avoid negative 
impacts to the Wilmette Avenue storm sewer system.  This would require an 
additional 4,200 linear feet of large diameter storm sewer.  Additionally, 
Centennial Park is much higher than Thornwood Park, resulting in excess 
overburden that would have to be managed as referenced in previous 
discussions with the Park District regarding the Centennial Park versus 
Community Playfields decision.  Given the unit prices in the current engineer’s 
estimate of probable cost, this would add approximately $8M-$9M to the project 
cost.  This configuration has not been analyzed hydraulically and additional 
infrastructure (pump station, etc.) may be required that would further increase the 
project costs.    

16.  How loud would the pump station and generator be? 

 The pumps in a pump station are located in a concrete structure underground.  
The noise level above ground near the pump station would be in the range of 20-
30 dB, or just above a whisper.  The generator, whether permanent or portable, 
is a large combustion engine which would produce 60-90 decibels, or similar to a 
diesel truck or lawn mower.  The generator would only function when the lower 
half of the vault is full and the power is out.  It would also need to be exercised 
per the maintenance schedule provided above.   

17. Will the roads around Thornwood Park be rebuilt/repaved after the wear and tear 
of construction vehicles?   

102



 All roads with new storm sewer will be fully rehabilitated.  The condition of the 
roads used for truck access will be evaluated and considered for improvements 
in conjunction with the annual road program.   

Attachments 

1. Portable generator specification sheet  

2. Appendix 2: Planning Level Cost Estimate  

3. Hibbard Park Concept with Reservoir Under South Field  

103



Standby 110 kW 
Prime 100 kW 

60 Hz 1800 rpm 480V         
60 Hz 1800 rpm 600V 

Specifications 

Frequency Voltage Standby 
kW (kVA) 

Prime 
kW (kVA) 

Speed 
rpm 

480V 60 Hz Rating 

60 Hz 480/277V 110 (137) 100 (125) 1800 

60 Hz 208/120V 110 (137) 100 (125) 1800 

60 Hz 240/120V 65 (65) 65 (65) 1800 

600V 60 Hz Rating (Optional) 

60 Hz 600V/347V 110 (137) 100 (125) 1800 

60 Hz 480V/277V 110 (137) 100 (125) 1800 

60 Hz 208/120V 110 (137) 100 (125) 1800 

60 Hz 240/120V 64 (64) 64 (64) 1800 

Cat®  C4.4 ACERT™ Diesel Engine Metric Imperial (English) 

Configuration I-4, 4-Stroke - Water Cooled Diesel 

Bore 105 mm 4.13 in 

Stroke 127 mm 5 in 

Displacement 4.4 L 268.5 in3

Aspiration Turbocharged-Aftercooled 

Compression Ratio 16.5:1 

Engine rpm 1800 

Governor Type ADEM™ A4 

Image shown may not reflect actual configuration

104



Fuel/Emissions Strategy 
• Meets U.S. EPA Tier 4 Final emission standards

and CARB certified for non-road mobile
applications at all 60 Hz ratings

Design Criteria  
• Meets ISO 8528 transient response and linear

vibration
• Canadian Standards Association (CSA)

Certified
Single-source Supplier 
• Package is factory designed and production

tested
• Manufactured in ISO 9001:2000 certified

Caterpillar facility

Cat C4.4 ACERT Diesel Engine 
• Four-stroke diesel engine with ACERT

technology combined with electronic engine
controller  offers consistent performance and
excellent fuel economy

• Series turbocharged with smart wastegate
• Low ownership costs enabled by a 3,000 hrs

service interval for multi-vee belts and service
free tappets

• Oil and fuel filter change intervals: 500 hrs
Cat Clean Emissions Module (CEM) 
• Engine mounted Aftertreatment module
contains of Diesel Oxidation Catalyst (DOC) 
and Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR)

• Aftertreatment remains invisible to the
equipment operator when in use

• No requirement for ash servicing
• Service free for life of the engine

Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF) System 
• DEF tank provides more than 24 hrs run

time@ 75% load.
• Electrically heated DEF lines
Cat Generator 
• Matched to the performance and output

characteristics of Cat engines
• Integrated voltage selector switch
• UL 1446 Recognized Class H insulation

Cat Integrated Voltage Regulator (Cat IVR) 
• Three-phase sensing
• Adjustable volts-per-hertz regulation

Cat EMCP 4.2B Control Panel 
• Electronic control panel provides power metering,

protective relaying, engine and generator parameter
viewing, and expanded AC metering

• Graphical display (3.8 in.) denotes text alarm/ event
descriptions, set points, engine and generator
monitoring, and is visible in all lighting conditions

• Simple, user-friendly interface and navigation
• Automatic set-point adjustment integrated with

voltage selection

Sound-attenuated Enclosure 
• Provides excellent weather protection and allows for

a quiet package operation with less than 66 dBA
sound levels at full load, while offering excellent
service access with multiple doors and access
panels

• Galvanealed sheet steel body panels for improved
corrosion resistance.

• Coolant and oil drains along with auxiliary fuel
connections are all conveniently located at one 
location on the exterior of the enclosure for easy 
access.

Fuel System 
• Provides  24-hour runtime @ 75% prime
• Meets UL 142, ULC 601
• OPTIONAL:  Meets Transport Canada (UN31A)

requirements with factory-installed, optional vent
kit

Reduced Environmental Impact 
• 110% spill containment of onboard engine

fluids

Cooling System 
• Provides 50°C ambient capability @ full rating
• Coolant low-level shutdown switch
• Coolant recovery system for easy top off

Charging System 
• Charging alternator; 12V-100A, heavy duty with

integral regulator and belt guards
• 10-Watt Solar maintainer for batteries

Asset Monitoring and Management 
• Product Link™ Generation (PLG) hardware provides

two-way communication for remote control and
equipment monitoring via cellular network

• Customer-defined, equipment-based, real-time
status updates and alerts

• Flexible and customer-configurable user interface
• GPS provides asset location and geo-fencing

• Provides precise control, excellent block loading,
and constant voltage in the normal operating range

Features & Benefits  

105



Factory-installed Standard Equipment 

• Cat C4.4 ACERT heavy-duty diesel engine
meets Tier 4 Final emission standards

Engine Air Inlet 
• Heavy-duty air cleaner with dust cup and

service indicator
• Turbocharger and air-to-air after cooler
Cat CEM 
• Engine mounted CEM
• Robust operation in cold weather and low loads
• Includes DOC and SCR
DEF System 
• 8 gal (30 L) plastic DEF tank provides

capacity to meet or exceed fuel tank runtime
at any given load.

• DEF tank is equipped with integrated level
sensor and heating element to aid in cold
weather operation.

• Electrically heated DEF lines
• DEF level gauge located on the control panel
• Equipped with low and critically-low level

alarms and a critically-low shutdown
Fuel System 
• 150 gal (568 L) double-wall fuel tank
• Fuel fill located in an isolated enclosed

space away from the engine compartment
with a lockable door

• Designed to meet UL 142, ULC 601
• Provides 24-hour runtime @ 75% prime
• Engine mounted electric priming pump
• Auxiliary connections for customer-supplied fuel

transfer system with 3-way fuel transfer valve
• Engine mounted primary fuel filter with

integral water separator
• Engine-mounted secondary fuel filter
Cooling System 
• Provides 50°C ambient capability @ full

rating
• Vertically mounted radiator with engine

mounted cooling fan
• 50/50 Extended Life Coolant
• Coolant low-level shutdown switch
• Coolant recovery system
• Coolant drain line with valve

Sound-attenuated Enclosure 
• Provides excellent weather protection
• Offers a quiet package with 66 dBA sound levels
• Rugged, corrosion-resistant construction:

• Galvanealed, sheet steel body panels with zinc
phosphate pre-treatment prior to polyester
powder coating

• Excellent access for service and maintenance:
• Two doors on each side of the enclosure

provides clear access to routine service and
maintenance needs.

• Two rear doors provide access to power
distribution and control panel access

• Separate door for DEF and Diesel fill access
• Access panel on the front provides access to

clean radiator cores and to service DEF tank.
• Lube oil drain, coolant drain, external fuel

supply and return lines are all piped to
exterior of the enclosure and located on one
panel for easy access.

• Security and safety features:
• Pad lockable latches on all access doors
• Exterior emergency stop (E-stop) button

Lube System 
• Open crankcase breather with filter
• Oil drain line with internal valve routed to

connection point accessible from exterior
• 500-hour engine oil change interval

Mounting System 
• Engine, generator and radiator soft mounted

to the heavy duty, fabricated steel base frame

Starting System 
• Single electric starting motor, 12VDC
• Single 12V (850 CCA) maintenance-free

battery with disconnect switch, battery rack,
and cables

• 120V single-phase block heater

Engine

Quality 
• Factory testing of standard generator set and

complete power module
• UL, NEMA, ISO, and IEEE standards
• O&M manuals
• CSA Certified
• Full manufacturer’s warranty

Shore Power 
• One 110V shore power connection for powering

engine block heater and generator space heater 
(optional), battery charger (optional),  and single 
duplex service receptacle

• Includes controls to de-energize block and
generator space heaters when the engine is 
running

106



• Provides necessary vents and films to upgrade
the standard UL142 certified tank to meet
Transport Canada (UN31A) certification

Trailer Electric 
• Two-axle trailer with Electric brakes

Trailer Hydraulic 
• Two-axle trailer with Hydraulic brakes

Battery Charger

Factory-installed Optional Equipment 

Generator Space Heater

Permanent Magnet Generator (PMG)

NEMA Receptacles

600V Generator

• 110 VAC Anti-condensation heater

• Adds independent source of excitation to
generator

• 208 Volt locking NEMA receptacles, quantity 2

• Available voltages include:

• 3-phase (600/347 Volt, 480/277 Volt,
208/120 Volt)

• 1-phase (240/120 Volt)

• Includes 600V generator and 4-position rotary
switch for easy selection of desired output

• 10A, 12 VDC output

• UL & CSA listed
Hitches
• 3" Pintle OR 2-5/16" Ball

Vent Kit  

107



Technical Data 
Cat Generator 

Frame size LC3114F 
Pitch 2/3 
No. of poles 4 

 No. of leads 12 
Excitation Self Excited 
Number of bearings Single bearing, close coupled 
Insulation Class H 
Enclosure Drip proof IP23 
Alignment Pilot shaft 
Overspeed capability – % of rated 125% of rated 
Voltage regulator 3-phase sensing with volts-per-hertz 
Voltage regulation (adjustable to compensate 
for engine speed droop and line loss) Less than ± 1⁄2% voltage gain 

Wave form deviation 3% 
Telephone Influence Factor (TIF) Less than 50 
Harmonic Distortion (THD) Less than 5% 

Cat Generator Set 
Units 60 Hz — Standby 60 Hz — Prime 

Power Rating kW (kVA) 110 (137) 100 (125) 
Performance Specification 

Lubricating System 
Oil pan capacity L (gal) 9.4 (2.5) 9.4 (2.5) 
Fuel System 
 L/hr (gal/hr) 31.3 (8.27) 28.4 (7.49) Fuel consumption —  100% Load 

75% Load L/hr (gal/hr)        - 20.9 (5.51) 
50% Load L/hr (gal/hr)       -  14.4 (3.80) 

        25% Load L/hr (gal/hr)       - 7.5 (1.97) 
Fuel tank capacity L (gal) 568 (150)    568 (150) 
Run time @ 75% rating Hr 28 
DEF System 

L/hr (gal/hr) 1.2 (0.31) 0.47 (0.12) DEF consumption —  100% Load 
75% Load L/hr (gal/hr)        - 0.72 (0.19) 
50% Load L/hr (gal/hr)       -  0.39 (0.10) 
25% Load L/hr (gal/hr)       - 0.45 (0.12) 

DEF tank capacity L (gal) 30 (7.92)  30 (7.92) 
Run time @ 75% rating Hr 42 
Cooling System 

°C (°F) 55 (131) 55 (131) Ambient capability 
Engine & radiator coolant capacity L (gal) 18.3 (4.8) 18.3 (4.8) 
Noise Rating (with enclosure)
@ 7 meters (23 feet) @ 75% rating dB(A) 66 65 

LEHX0035-03 108



Technical Data (continued)

Dimensions and Weights 

Model Length 
mm (in) 

Width 
mm (in) 

Height 
mm (in) 

With Lube Oil 
& Coolant 

Kg (lb) 

With all fluids 
Kg (lb) 

XQ125 3,222 (127) 1,244 (49) 1,858 (73) 2,372 (5,230) 2,876 (6,341)

XQ125 with 
trailer (electric 
brakes) 

4,475 (176) 1,981 (78) 2,179 (86) 2,812 (6,200) 3,316 (7,311) 

XQ125 with trailer 
(hydraulic brakes)  4,495 (177) 1,981 (78) 2,179 (86) 2,821 (6,220) 3,325 (7,331) 

109



Control Panel and Power Distribution Layout 

Ratings Definitions and Conditions 
Meets or Exceeds International Specifications: AS1359, 
CSA, IEC60034-1, ISO3046, ISO8528, NEMA MG 1-33. 

Prime — Output available with varying load for an unlimited 
time. Average power output is 70% of the prime power 
rating. Typical peak demand is 100% of prime rated ekW 
with 10% overload capability for emergency use for a 
maximum of 1 hour in 12. Overload operation cannot 
exceed 25 hours per year. Prime power in accordance with 
ISO3046. Prime ambients shown indicate 
ambient temperature at 100% load which results in a coolant 
top tank temperature below the alarm temperature. 

Standby — Output available with varying load for the duration of the 
interruption of the normal source power. Average power output is 70% of 
the standby power rating. Typical operation is 200 hours per year, with 
maximum expected usage of 500 hours per year. 

Ratings are based on SAE J1349 standard conditions. These 
ratings also apply at ISO3046 standard conditions. 

Fuel rates are based on fuel oil of 35º API [16ºC (60ºF)] 
gravity having an LHV of 42 780 kJ/kg (18,390 Btu/lb) when 
used at 29ºC (85ºF) and weighing 838.9 g/liter (7.001 lbs/U.S. 
gal). 

Additional ratings may be available for specific customer requirements, 
contact your Caterpillar representative for details. For information 
regarding low sulfur fuel and biodiesel capability, please consult your Cat 
dealer. 

LEHX0035-03 (8-17) 

www.Cat.com/rentalpower 
©2017 Caterpillar 

All rights reserved. 
Materials and specifications are subject to change without notice. 
The International System of Units (SI) is used in this publication. 

CAT, CATERPILLAR, BUILT FOR IT, their respective logos, ACERT, ADEM, Product Link 
“Caterpillar Yellow”, the “Power Edge” trade dress as well as corporate and product identity 

used herein, are trademarks of Caterpillar and may not be used without permission. 

Item Description 

1 Steel enclosure with hinged, lockable doors 
(not shown) 

2 Circuit breakers for receptacles 

3 Emergency stop 

4 2X Single-phase GFCI duplex receptacles 
(20A @ 120V) 

5 Two-wire remote start terminals 

6 
3X Single-phase, California-style, twist-lock 
receptacles, 50A @ 208V phase-to-phase, 120V 
phase to neutral, or 240/120 single-phase when 
in that voltage position 

7 
Single-phase, NEMA locking input receptacle, 
(30A @ 120V) to power block heater, battery 
charger and generator space heater 

8 Glow plug lamp 

9 EMCP 4.2B digital generator set controller 

10 Cat ET service tool connector 

11 Generator main circuit breaker 

12 Main bus connection (bus bars with 13 mm 
holes) behind hinged cover with safety switch 

13 HEST/DPF Regen Lamp 

110

http://www.cat.com/rentalpower


Pay Item Type Unit Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost Quantity CostVAULT L SUM VARIES 1 4,747,800$ 1 4,386,000$ 1 3,316,300$PUMP L SUM 750,000$ 1 750,000$STORM SEWER, RCP, 48" LF 400$ 300 120,000$ 300 120,000$UNDERDRAIN, 6" PVC FOOT 15$ 2,120 31,800$TOPSOIL EXCAVATION AND PLACEMENT SQ YD 10$ 22,300 223,000$ 22,600 226,000$ 14,600 146,000$SEEDING SQ YD 3$ 22,300 66,900$ 22,600 67,800$ 14,600 43,800$EROSION CONTROL BLANKET SQ YD 3$ 22,300 66,900$ 22,600 67,800$ 14,600 43,800$EARTH EXCAVATION CU YD 50$ 54,800 2,740,000$ 53,900 2,695,000$ 53,200 2,660,000$EXCAVATION RE-SPREAD (STAY ON-SITE) CU YD 25$ 29,100 727,500$ 29,300 732,500$ 18,800 470,000$STRUCTURAL BACKFILL CU YD 50$ 5,000 250,000$ 7,100 355,000$ 12,400 620,000$TREE REMOVAL (OVER 15 UNITS DIAMETER) IN-DIA 50$ 906 45,300$ 96 4,800$STRUCTURE REMOVAL, STORM EACH 250$ 5 1,250$ 3 750$ 2 500$STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 4" FOOT 11$ 189 2,079$ 93 1,023$ 215 2,365$STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 12" FOOT 11$ 806 8,866$ 559 6,149$ 466 5,126$STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE L SUM 15,000$ 1 15,000$ 1 15,000$ 1 15,000$AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS TON 40$ 33 1,320$ 33 1,320$ 33 1,320$SUBTOTAL 8,900,000$ 8,680,000$ 8,230,000$CONTINGENCY (20%) 1,780,000$ 1,740,000$ 1,650,000$TOTAL 10,680,000$ 10,420,000$ 9,880,000$(260,000)$ (800,000)$
Pay Item Type Unit Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost Quantity CostVAULT L SUM VARIES 1 2,680,900$ 1 1,591,400$ 1 1,558,300$ 1 1,414,800$PUMP L SUM 750,000$ 1 750,000$ 1 750,000$ 1 750,000$STORM SEWER, RCP, 48" LF 400$ 650 260,000$ 650 260,000$ 650 260,000$SHEET PILING, 36' SQ FT 25$ 40,644 1,016,100$SHEET PILING, 54' SQ FT 30$ 21,276 638,280$ 30,078 902,340$SHEET PILING, 66' SQ FT 35$ 47,058 1,647,030$UNDERDRAIN, 6" PVC FOOT 15$ 1,350 20,250$ 1,450 21,750$ 1,305 19,575$TOPSOIL EXCAVATION AND PLACEMENT SQ YD 10$ 13,600 136,000$ 7,300 73,000$ 6,700 67,000$ 5,800 58,000$SEEDING SQ YD 3$ 13,600 40,800$ 7,300 21,900$ 6,700 20,100$ 5,800 17,400$EROSION CONTROL BLANKET SQ YD 3$ 13,600 40,800$ 7,300 21,900$ 6,700 20,100$ 5,800 17,400$EARTH EXCAVATION CU YD 50$ 29,900 1,495,000$ 26,300 1,315,000$ 24,600 1,230,000$ 26,000 1,300,000$EXCAVATION RE-SPREAD (STAY ON-SITE) CU YD 25$ 17,300 432,500$ 9,300 232,500$ 8,600 215,000$ 7,400 185,000$STRUCTURAL BACKFILL CU YD 50$ 6,000 300,000$ 5,700 285,000$ 4,200 210,000$ 5,700 285,000$TREE REMOVAL (6 TO 15 UNITS DIAMETER) IN-DIA 35$ 495 17,325$ 120 4,200$ 120 4,200$ 30 1,050$TREE REMOVAL (OVER 15 UNITS DIAMETER) IN-DIA 50$ 90 4,500$STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE L SUM 15,000$ 1 15,000$ 1 15,000$ 1 15,000$ 1 15,000$AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS TON 40$ 33 1,320$ 33 1,320$ 33 1,320$ 33 1,320$SUBTOTAL 6,190,000$ 5,230,000$ 5,280,000$ 5,980,000$CONTINGENCY (20%) 1,240,000$ 1,050,000$ 1,060,000$ 1,200,000$TOTAL 7,430,000$ 6,280,000$ 6,340,000$ 7,180,000$(1,150,000)$ (1,090,000)$ (250,000)$

Hibbard ParkProposed Alternative 1 Alternative 2 Alternative 3

Planning-Level Cost Estimate (COMPARATIVE COSTS)
West Side Neighborhood Storage - Underground Detention Configuration Alternatives

Village of Wilmette

Community ParkProposed Alternative 1 Alternative 2
Appendix 2

111



Pay Item Type Unit Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost Quantity CostVAULT L SUM VARIES 1 3,460,900$ 1 3,437,200$ 1 2,154,800$PUMP L SUM 750,000$ 1 750,000$SHEET PILING, 54' SQ FT 30$ 24,300 729,000$BASEBALL DIAMOND REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT EACH 400,000$ 2 800,000$ 2 800,000$ 1 400,000$UNDERDRAIN, 6" PVC FOOT 15$ 1,235 18,525$TOPSOIL EXCAVATION AND PLACEMENT SQ YD 10$ 16,800 168,000$ 17,800 178,000$ 8,800 88,000$SEEDING SQ YD 3$ 16,800 50,400$ 17,800 53,400$ 8,800 26,400$EROSION CONTROL BLANKET SQ YD 3$ 16,800 50,400$ 17,800 53,400$ 8,800 26,400$EARTH EXCAVATION CU YD 50$ 36,800 1,840,000$ 38,900 1,945,000$ 33,500 1,675,000$EXCAVATION RE-SPREAD (STAY ON-SITE) CU YD 25$ 21,900 547,500$ 23,300 582,500$ 11,400 285,000$STRUCTURAL BACKFILL CU YD 50$ 3,500 175,000$ 4,000 200,000$ 5,000 250,000$TREE REMOVAL (6 TO 15 UNITS DIAMETER) IN-DIA 35$ 251 8,785$ 331 11,585$ 5 175$TREE REMOVAL (OVER 15 UNITS DIAMETER) IN-DIA 50$ 897 44,850$ 1,068 53,400$ 36 1,800$STRUCTURE REMOVAL, STORM EACH 250$ 2 500$ 2 500$ 1 250$STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 8" FOOT 11$ 242 2,662$ 242 2,662$ 197 2,167$STORM SEWER REMOVAL, 12" FOOT 11$ 125 1,375$ 125 1,375$STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE L SUM 15,000$ 1 15,000$ 1 15,000$ 1 15,000$AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS TON 40$ 33 1,320$ 33 1,320$ 33 1,320$SUBTOTAL 7,170,000$ 7,340,000$ 6,430,000$CONTINGENCY (20%) 1,440,000$ 1,470,000$ 1,290,000$TOTAL 8,610,000$ 8,810,000$ 7,720,000$200,000$ (890,000)$

Proposed Alternative 1 Alternative 2Thornwood Park

112



113



CS244433A

National Center for Emerging and Zoonotic Infectious Diseases
Division of Vector-Borne Diseases

Mosquito life cycle

 Aedes aegypti

Adult

Eggs

Larva

Pupa

The Aedes mosquitoes have 4 life stages:  egg, larva, pupa and adult.  Mosquitoes can live and reproduce 
inside and outside the home.  The entire life cycle, from an egg to an adult, takes approximately 8-10 days.   

Pupae develop into adult    
    flying mosquitoes  
         in 2-3 days.

Female mosquitoes lay eggs inside       
        containers holding water.   

 Eggs are ready to hatch   
         from a few days to several   
   months after being laid. Eggs 
hatch when submerged in water   

 Larvae are aquatic           
        and develop into pupae 
          in as little as 5 days.   

114



Life Stages of Aedes Mosquitoes
Eggs

 • Adult, female mosquitoes lay their eggs on the inner, wet 
walls of containers with water, above the waterline. 

 • Mosquitoes generally lay 100 eggs at a time. 
 • Eggs are very hardy; they stick to the walls of a container 

like glue and can survive drying out for up to 8 months—
even over the winter in the southern United States.  

 • It only takes a very small amount of water to attract a 
female mosquito. Bowls, cups, fountains, tires, barrels, 
vases and any other container storing water makes for a 
great “nursery.” 

Larva
 • Larvae emerge from mosquito eggs, but only after the 

water level rises to cover the eggs.  This means that 
rainwater or humans adding water to containers with eggs 
will trigger the larvae to emerge. 

 • Larvae feed on microorganisms in the water. After molting 
three times, the larva becomes a pupa.   

Pupa
 • Pupae will develop until the body of the newly formed 

adult flying mosquito emerges from the pupal skin and 
leaves the water. 

Adult 
 • After adult mosquitoes emerge:  male mosquitoes feed 

on nectar from flowers and female mosquitoes feed on 
humans and animals for blood to produce eggs.

 • After feeding, female mosquitoes will look for water 
sources to lay more eggs.

 • Aedes aegypti only flies a few blocks during its life.
 • Unlike other mosquito species, Aedes aegypti mosquitoes 

prefer to bite people.
 • Aedes aegypti mosquitoes prefer to live near people.  They 

can be found inside homes, buildings, and businesses 
where window and door screens are not used or doors are 
left propped open. 

Eggs look like black dirt. 

Larvae in the water.  

Pupae in the water.  

Emerging adult mosquito.

Female mosquito after biting a person. For more information on mosquitoes and dengue, 
visit:  www.cdc.gov/dengue

115



116



COMMUNITY PLAYFIELD
with yardage

Field Hockey & Lacrosse
120x60 yards

Soccer 
Field
112x75 yards

Soccer 
Field
60x45 yards

Soccer 
Field
50x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
50x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
30x25 yards

Baseball Field

Baseball Field

Baseball 
Field

Soccer 
Field
30x25 
yards

Soccer 
Field
30x25 
yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

117



COMMUNITY PLAYFIELD
with yardage

Field Hockey & Lacrosse
120x60 yards

Soccer 
Field
112x75 yards

Soccer 
Field
60x45 yards

Soccer 
Field
50x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
50x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
30x25 yards

Baseball Field

Baseball Field

Baseball 
Field

Soccer 
Field
30x25 
yards

Soccer 
Field
30x25 
yards

Field Hockey & Lacrosse
120x60 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

118



COMMUNITY PLAYFIELD
with yardage

Field Hockey & Lacrosse
120x60 yards

Soccer 
Field
112x75 yards

Soccer 
Field
60x45 yards

Soccer 
Field
50x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
50x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
75x47 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
30x25 yards

Baseball Field

Baseball Field

Baseball 
Field

Soccer 
Field
30x25 
yards

Soccer 
Field
30x25 
yards

Baseball Field

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

Soccer 
Field
40x30 yards

119



WILMETTE PARK DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION 2019-R-9 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TERMS AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN WILMETTE PARK DISTRICT AND VILLAGE OF 
WILMETTE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF STORMWATER 

IMPROVEMENTS ON CERTAIN PARK DISTRICT OWNED PROPERTIES 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Wilmette (“Village”) owns and operates a storm and sanitary 
sewer system, including certain ancillary facilities and improvements, that extends throughout 
its corporate boundaries; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village desires to construct, maintain, and operate a series of additional 

underground storm water reservoirs, piping, and certain other ancillary improvements 
(collectively, “Storage Reservoirs”), for the purpose of managing and storing excess surface storm 
water in an effort to decrease surface flooding throughout the Village (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village performed a significant amount of due diligence, including 

consultation with certain third-party consultants, to evaluate the efficacy of the Project and to 
identify potential locations for the Storage Reservoirs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village identified certain portions of Wilmette Park District (“Park District”) 

property, namely, Community Playfield, Thornwood Park, and Hibbard Park (collectively referred 
to as the “Park Properties”),  as suitable locations for the installation and operation of the Storage 
Reservoirs, and requested permission from the Park District for access to and use of the Park 
Properties to help facilitate the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village and Park District also held numerous public meetings to discuss the 

Project, the Storage Reservoirs, and use of the Park Properties, and to receive input from their 
respective residents and the general public with respect to same; and 

  
WHEREAS, the parties have determined that it is in the best interests of their respective 

residents, as well as the public generally, to proceed with the Project, including the installation and 
operation of the Storage Reservoirs at the Park Properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties have determined that there will be a detailed intergovernmental 

agreement, or series of intergovernmental agreements, entered into between the parties on a 
future date that will provide the specific terms and conditions governing the Project and, in 
particular, the installation and operation of the Storage Reservoirs at the Park Properties; and  

 
WHEREAS, the next stage of the Project requires the creation of detailed plans and 

specifications by third-party consultants, which will come at considerable expense to the Village; 
and  

  
WHEREAS, this Memorandum of Understanding is intended to provide the parties with 

assurances with respect to the Park Properties where the Storage Reservoirs will be placed, as well 
as a general idea of the footprints of the Storage Reservoirs at the Park Properties prior to the 

120



Village incurring additional, substantial costs for the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the  Park District’s Board of Park Commissioners (“Park Board”) has determined 

that it is in the public’s interest to grant certain easement rights to the Village in order to facilitate 
the construction, operation and maintenance of the Storage Reservoirs at the Park Properties, 
and to otherwise facilitate completion of the Project, subject to terms and conditions set forth in 
an intergovernmental agreement or series of intergovernmental agreements to be negotiated and 
executed by the Parties at a future date; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Park Board has further determined that the execution of this Memorandum 

of Understanding is a necessary next step to allow the Village to continue to pursue the Project; 
and    

 
WHEREAS, the Village, by virtue of its power as a home rule unit of government as 

provided in Article VII, Section 6 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, and the Park 
District, by virtue of its powers set forth in Sections 8-1 and 8-11 of the Park District Code (70 ILCS 
1205/8-1 and 8-11), are authorized to enter into such an intergovernmental agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, a cooperative intergovernmental agreement is appropriate and such an 

agreement is authorized and encouraged by Article 7, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution.   
    
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the 

Wilmette Park District, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The preamble to this Resolution is hereby incorporated in its entirety by 
reference in, and made a part of, this Resolution. 
 
 Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the proposed “Memorandum of 
Understanding,”  copies of which have been distributed to and considered by the Park Board at 
this meeting, are hereby approved, and the President and Secretary of the Park Board are 
hereby authorized and directed to execute said agreement in the name of and on behalf of the 
Park District, substantially in the form presented at this meeting, with such modifications 
thereto as the President in consultation with the Park District’s attorney shall approve, which 
approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the President’s  execution thereof. 
 

Section 3. The Secretary of the Park Board is hereby authorized and directed to 
certify a copy of this Resolution and deliver same to the Village. 

 
Section 4. The proper officers of the Park District are hereby authorized to execute 

such further documents and instruments and take such further actions as they shall deem 
necessary or appropriate in order to carry out the intent and effect the provisions and purposes 
of this Resolution and the Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 
Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption 

as provided by law.  
 
Adopted by roll call vote this 19th day of August, 2019. 

121



 
Ayes:               
  
Nays:               
 
Abstentions:              
  
Absent:              
 
 
             
      President, Board of Park Commissioners 
      Wilmette Park District  
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Secretary, Board of Park Commissioners  
Wilmette Park District  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

122



SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE 
 

I, Stephen P. Wilson, do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Wilmette  Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I am 
keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and, 

I hereby further certify that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of: 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TERMS AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN WILMETTE PARK DISTRICT AND VILLAGE OF 

WILMETTE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF STORMWATER 
IMPROVEMENTS ON CERTAIN PARK DISTRICT OWNED PROPERTIES 

 
adopted at a duly called Special Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Wilmette 
Park District, held at Wilmette, Illinois, in said District at 7:30 p.m. on the 19th day of August, 
2019.  

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said resolution 
were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was taken openly, that 
said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of said 
meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice, that an agenda for said 
meeting was posted at the location where said meeting was held and at the principal office of 
the Board at least 48 hours in advance of the holding of said meeting, that said meeting was 
called and held in strict compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of 
Illinois, as amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and said Code 
and with all of the procedural rules of the Board, in the passage of the resolution. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said Park District at 
Wilmette, Illinois this 19th day of August, 2019. 
 

  
Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners 
Wilmette Park District  

[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 

123



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
(Village of Wilmette – Wilmette Park District) 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into as of this    day of 

August, 2019, by and between THE VILLAGE OF WILMETTE, (“Village”), an Illinois municipal 
corporation and home rule unit, and WILMETTE PARK DISTRICT (“Park District”), an Illinois park 
district and unit of local government.  The Village and Park District are hereinafter sometimes 
referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the Village has determined that it is in the best interests of the health, 
safety, and welfare of its residents and the general public to construct, maintain, and operate, 
within the corporate boundaries of the Village, a series of underground storm water reservoirs, 
piping, and other apparatuses (collectively, “Storage Reservoirs”), for the purpose of managing 
and storing excess surface storm water in an effort to decrease surface flooding throughout the 
Village (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Village performed a significant amount of due diligence, including 
consultation with certain third-party consultants, to evaluate the efficacy of the Project and to 
identify potential locations for the Storage Reservoirs; and 

WHEREAS, the Village identified certain portions of Park District property, namely, 
Community Playfield, Thornwood Park, and Hibbard Park (collectively referred to as the 
“Locations”),  as suitable locations for the installation and operation of the Storage Reservoirs, 
and requested permission from the Park District for access to and use of the Locations to help 
facilitate the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties also held numerous public meetings to discuss the Project, the 
Storage Reservoirs, and the Locations, and to receive input from their respective residents and 
the general public with respect to same; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that it is in the best interests of their respective 
residents, as well as the public generally, to proceed with the Project, including the installation 
and operation of the Storage Reservoirs at the Locations; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge and agree that there will be a detailed 
intergovernmental agreement, or series of intergovernmental agreements, entered into 
between the Parties on a future date that will provide the specific terms and conditions 
governing the Project and, in particular, the installation and operation of the Storage Reservoirs 
at the Locations; and  

WHEREAS, this MOU is intended to provide the Parties with assurances with respect to 
the Locations where the Storage Reservoirs will be placed, as well as a general idea of the 
footprints of the Storage Reservoirs at the Locations prior to the Village incurring any 
substantial costs for the Project; and 

124



WHEREAS, once this MOU is executed, the Village intends to continue progress on the 
Project by engaging third party vendors to provide the final engineering design and plans for 
the Project, at which time the Village will begin to incur substantial costs for the Project; and   

WHEREAS, an intergovernmental agreement is appropriate and such an agreement is 
authorized and encouraged by Article 7, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution and the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.); and  

WHEREAS, the  Village,  by  virtue  of  its  powers  as  a  home  rule  unit  of  government  
as provided  in  Article  VII,  Section  6  of  the  1970  Constitution  of  the  State  of  Illinois,  and  
Park District, by virtue of its powers set forth in Sections 8-1 and 8-11 of the Park District Code 
(70 ILCS 1205/8-1 and 8-11), are authorized to enter into this MOU. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises herein contained, the Parties agree 
as follows: 

1. RECITALS.  Each of the foregoing recitals and findings are hereby made a part of this 
MOU and are incorporated by reference as if set forth verbatim herein. 

2. GRANT OF AN EASEMENT. Upon the successful negotiation and execution of one or 
more intergovernmental easement agreements with terms and conditions acceptable to 
the Parties, the Park District shall grant the Village certain non-exclusive perpetual 
easements and certain temporary construction easements to allow the Village to install, 
operate and maintain the Storage Reservoirs at the Locations, and to otherwise 
facilitate completion of the Project.  The specific details of the easements contemplated 
by this MOU shall be provided in one or more intergovernmental agreements between 
the Parties to be negotiated and executed at a later date.  

3. LOCATIONS. Upon the successful negotiation and execution of one or more 
intergovernmental easement agreements with terms and conditions acceptable to the 
Parties, the Village shall be allowed to construct, maintain and operate the Storage 
Reservoirs upon the Park property as specifically provided for in this MOU and as 
provided for in writing in any subsequent agreements.   The Project shall substantially 
conform to the footprints provided for in the following Exhibits:   

a. Community Playfield: The portion of the Project to be commenced at 
Community Playfield shall be located within the area shown in red on the 
attached Exhibit A.   

b. Hibbard Park: The portion of the Project to be commenced at Hibbard Park shall 
be located within the area shown in red on the attached Exhibit B.   

c. Thornwood Park: The portion of the Project to be commenced at Thornwood 
Park shall be located within the area shown in red on the attached Exhibit C.   

4. VILLAGE OBLIGATIONS. 

125



The Village shall construct the Storage Reservoirs and restore the Locations at no cost to 
the Park District in the manner as mutually agreed upon between the Parties at a later 
date and memorialized in one or more intergovernmental agreements.   

5. LAW GOVERNING.  

The laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the terms of this Agreement both as to 
interpretation and performance. 

6. CAPTIONS AND PARAGRAPH HEADINGS.  

Captions and paragraph headings are for convenience only and are not a part of this 
Agreement and shall not be used in construing it. 

7. NOTICES.  

All notices provided for herein shall be served upon the Parties by personal delivery, 
email, fax or Certified United States mail, return receipt requested, at the following 
locations, or at such other location or locations as the Parties may from time to time 
designate in writing: 

Notice to Park District: 
 
Executive Director 
Wilmette Park District 
1200 Wilmette Avenue 
Wilmette, IL 60091 

Notice to Village: 
 
Village Manager 
Village of Wilmette 
1200 Wilmette Avenue 
Wilmette, IL 60091 

 

Notices shall be deemed given when received by the Party to whom it was sent. 

8. COUNTERPARTS.  
 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts that, taken together, will be effective 
as if they were a single document. Signatures transmitted by a .pdf file or facsimile 
shall be treated as originals. 

 
9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

This instrument contains the entire agreement between the Parties relating to the rights 
granted herein and the obligations herein assumed. Any oral representations or 
modifications concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect, and any 
modifications to this Agreement must be in writing and must be signed by all Parties to 
this Agreement.   

126



Agreed to: 

VILLAGE OF WILMETTE 
 
 
       
Robert T. Bielinski, 
Village President 

WILMETTE PARK DISTRICT 
 
 
By:_________________________________  
President, Board of Park Commissioners 
 
Attest:_______________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Park Commissioners  
 

  
 

127



In
v
 
6
18
.3

3
6
 
10
''
L

IN
E
D
 
E
 

In
v
 

6

18
.2

3
6
 
10
''
L
IN

E

D

 
S
 

R
im
 
6
2
2
.6

2
6

4
' 

 S
E

A

L
E
D
 
G
O
O
D
 

M
H
S
N
 
15

2 In
v
 
6
18
.7

8
 
10
''
L
IN

E
D
 
E
 

In
v
 

6

18
.7

6
 
10
''
L
IN

E
D
 

W
 

R
im
 
6
2
3
.1
3

4
' 
 S

E
A
L
E
D
 
G
O
O

D

 

M
H
S
N
 
15

7

N MEADOW DRIVE

MIDDLE SCHOOL

HILLCREST

INLET

INLET/OUTLET

EXCAVATION FOOTPRINT: 3.56 AC

DEPTH: 6.0'

STORAGE VOLUME: 18.6 AC-FT

WIDTH 17'
OVERDIG

DURING CONSTRUCTION
TREES TO BE PROTECTED

EXCAVATION FOOTPRINT: 0.30 AC

DEPTH: 6.0'

STORAGE VOLUME: 1.66 AC-FT

DETENTITON VOLUME

RELOCATED EXISTING

STAGING AREA

EXCAVATION

STORAGE

LEGEND

WILL BE DEFINED DURING FINAL ENGINEERING DESIGN.
APPROXIMATE FOOTPRINT.  EXACT FOOTPRINT AND LIMITS
IDENTIFYING THE STORAGE RESERVOIR LOCATION AND
LIMITS SHOWN ARE CONCEPTUAL WITH THE PURPOSE OF
STORAGE RESERVOIR CONFIGURATION AND EXCAVATION

FINAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION.
FORESTRY PERSONNEL WILL BE ENGAGED DURING BOTH
BE PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE VILLAGE'S
DESIGN.  ALL EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN IN PLACE WILL
MAY BE IDENTIFIED FOR REMOVAL DURING THE FINAL
MANY TREES AS POSSIBLE, HOWEVER ADDITIONAL TREES
THE VILLAGE OF WILMETTE ENDEAVORS TO PROTECT AS

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
MATERIAL, AND STORAGE OF VAULT COMPONENTS 
EQUIPMENT, STOCKPILING TOPSOIL AND EXCAVATED 
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES INCLUDING STORAGE OF 
STAGING AREAS TO BE USED FOR TEMPORARY
NOTE:

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION

COMMUNITY PARK

CONTRACT #1SCALE: 1" = 120'

0 60 120

HIGH SCHOOL

WILMETTE JUNIOR
BM

SAN

SAN

CB

CB

WVV

CB

ST

CB

ST

WVV

CB

NOTE

AERIAL HUB

NOTE

AERIAL HUB

NOTE

AERIAL HUB

NOTE

AERIAL HUB

NOTE

AERIAL HUB

FES

3"3"

2"

NOTE

ABANDONED CONDUIT

NOTE

ABANDONED CONDUIT

NOTE

ABANDONED CONDUIT

NOTE

ABANDONED CONDUIT

E-TRN

PPOEL MTR

FES

NOTE

TRASH RECEPTACLE

NOTE

TRASH RECEPTACLE

10' 2"

12'

10'

6'

2"

2"
15'15'

2"

6'

2-12" 10"

3-10"

12" 3-10"

20' 7"
20' 7"

25' 8" 6"22' 8"

20' 7"

3"

10'

2-5"

5" 3-2"

PPUC

PPO

8'PPO

PPUC
PPO

PPUC

PPUC

37"11"

22"

22" 20"
22"

3-1"

16"12"12"

S
P

R
I
N

K
L

E
R
 

H
D

IP1
IP1

IP1RB
RB

IP1
IP1

IP1
IP1

IP1

IP1

RB

IP1
IP1

IP1

RB
IP1

IP1IP1

24182424

2432

2
4
3
6

5' STOCKADE

3' CHAIN LINK

BOWS OUT

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

4' WOOD SLATS

BENCH

5' IRON

5' CHAIN LINK

BENCHTRASH RECEPTACLE

CHAIN LINK

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

6X6 WOOD IN MEMORY OF PLAQUE

4'  WOOD STOCKADE

4'  WOOD SLATS

C
O

N
C

4' PICKET

4" 9-1"

6"

7-3"20' 12"

12"

9-3"
6"

3"

CONC

CONC

CONC

BENCH TRASH RECEPTACLE CONC

GRVL

GRVL

HMA

"B
IK

E
 R

E
G
S
"

R
E

G
S
"

"
P

A
R

K

DOG WASTE BAGS

4' SPLIT RAIL

4' SPLIT RAIL

IRON SWING GATE W/LOCK

WOOD SIGN

A
N

Y
 
T
IM

E
"

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G

A
N

Y
 
T
IM

E
"

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G

H
M

A

H
M

A

HMAHMA

HMA

HMA HMA

4' SPLIT RAIL

H
M

A
C

O
N

C

H
M

A

4' SPLIT RAIL

4' SPLIT RAIL

CONC

ABANDONED CONDUIT

"
D

O
G
 
R

E
G

S
"

H
M

A

2-2"

CONC

CONC

CONC
CONC

HMA

"PARKING REGS"

C
O

N
C

CONC

C
O

N
C

"ST NAMES"

10"san lined10"san lined

1
0
"
c

m
p

rcp

8"

8
"rcp

8' MULCH 8' MULCH

8' MULCH

12' MULCH

12' MULCH

6' MULCH

6' MULCH

6' MULCH

8' MULCH

8' MULCH

8' MULCH

10' MULCH

12' MULCH

12' MULCH

10' MULCH

14' MULCH

8' MULCH

8' MULCH

10' MULCH

10' MULCH

10' MULCH

10' MULCH

12' MULCH

60" COTTONWOOD

40" COTTONWOOD

38" COTTONWOOD
18" COTTONWOOD

16" COTTONWOOD
27" COTTONWOOD

24" COTTONWOOD

18" COTTONWOOD

16" COTTONWOOD

18" COTTONWOOD

24" COTTONWOOD

31" COTTONWOOD

38" COTTONWOOD

18" COTTONWOOD

24" COTTONWOOD

26" COTTONWOOD

20" COTTONWOOD

22" COTTONWOOD

27" COTTONWOOD

16" COTTONWOOD

24" COTTONWOOD

35" COTTONWOOD

40" COTTONWOOD

25" COTTONWOOD

36"COTTONWOOD

36" COTTONWOOD

31" COTTONWOOD

40"COTTONWOOD
34" COTTONWOOD

34" COTTONWOOD

27" COTTONWOOD

2"

2"

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3
C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-2

C-2

C-2 C-2

25' 18" RED PINE

20' 16" RED PINE 25' 23" RED PINE

C-3

C-2

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-2 C-3

C-4

C-2

6" 4" HAWTHORN

2-8" HAWTHORN

18" SYCAMORE

30' 15" RED PINE

2-8" HAWTHORN

3-10" HAWTHORN

8" HAWTHORN

96" COTTONWOOD

96" COTTONWOOD

14" MULBERRY

14" 6" 4" HAWTHORN

8" HAWTHORN

24" MAPLE

50' 18" SPRUCE

25' 20" RED PINE

23" COTTONWOOD

20' 36" RED PINE

8" SCOTCH PINE

12" MAPLE

3-6" 3-4" 3" BIRCH

12"10" 2-8" BIRCH

6" 3-3" 2" BIRCH

36" MAPLE

24" HONEY LOCUST

20' 12" RED PINE

20' 21" RED PINE

16" MAPLE

6" 2-5" MAPLE

5" 2-2" BEECH

20' 15" RED PINE

8" BASSWOOD

7" CRABAPPLE
8" 2-7" 2-4" CRABAPPLE14" MAPLE

16" 12" ELM

7" 3" ELM20' 3-6" YEW

36" ELM

9-6" REDBUD

12" MAPLE

14" BASSWOOD

12" MAPLE

60" COTTONWOOD

C-3

10" HAWTHORN
36" COTTONWOOD

C-3 C-4
C-3

C-3

C-2

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-4

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-4

C-3

C-4

C-3

C-3C-3

C-4

C-3

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-4

25' 8" BLUE SPRUCE

C-4

30" BEECH

16' 8" DEAD BALD CYPRUS

C-3

16' 8" DEAD BALD CYPRUS

C-1

20' 20" RED PINE

C-2

10" PEAR

C-4

14" MAPLE

6
2
1

621

62
1

621

6
2
2

622

6
2
2

622

6
2
2

62
2

622

622

6
2
2

6
2
2

622

622

622

6
2
2

6
2
2

622
6
2
2

6
2
2

6
2
2

622

6
22

6
2
2

6
2
2

622

6
2
2

623

623

623

623

6
2
3

6
2
3

62
3

62
3

623

6
23

623

623

6
2
3

623

623

6
2
3

6
2
3

6
2
3

623

623

623

623

6
23

624

624

624

6
2
4

624

6
2
4

6
2
4

6
24

624

624

625

625

6
25

625

625

6
2
5

6
2
5

6
2
5

6
2
5

625

626

6
2
6

626

626

626

6
2
6

6
2
6

6
2
7

627

627

627

6
2
7

6
2
7

627

6
2
8

628

628

62
8

6
2
8

6
2
8

6
2
9

629

62
9

6
2
9

6
2
9

630

630

630

630

6
30

630
630

6
3
0

631

631
63

1

631 631

632

632

632
632

633

6
3
3

633

633

6
3
3

634

634 634

63
4

7
/
3
0
/
2
0
19

I:
\

C
r
y
s
t
a
l 
L
a
k
e
\

W
IL

M
V
\
18

0
5
6
4
-

N
S
IP
\

C
A

D
\

E
x
h
ib
it

s
\
18

0
5
6
4
_

C
o

m
m

u
n
it

y
 

P
a
r
k
.d

g
n

VILLAGE OF WILMETTE, ILLINOIS

COMMUNITY PARK - UNDERGROUND DETENTION CONFIGURATION ALTERNATIVES

128



I
n
v
 
6
1
7
.5

5
8
 
6
''V

C
P
 

N
W
 

I
n
v
 
6
1
7
.5

5
8
 
8
''V

C
P
 
S

W
 

R
i
m
 

6
2
2
.2

5
8

4
'  C

O
N

C
. B

L
O

C
K
 

G
O

O
D
 

M
H

S
N
 
1
6
2

I
n
v
 
6
1
5
.7

6
5
 
1
0
''D

I
 
S
 

I
n
v
 
6
1
5
.7

6
5
 
1
0
''P

V
C
 

E
 

R
i
m
 

6
2
2
.4

1
5

4
'  P

C
 

G
O

O
D
 

M
H

S
N
 
1
7
2

Inv 616.142 8''VCP N 

Inv 616.082 10''VCP SE 

Inv 616.082 10''PVC W 

Rim 622.362 4'  PC GOOD MHSN 152

Inv 616.822 10''VCP S 

Inv 616.942 8''VCP NE 

Inv 616.872 10''VCP NW 

Rim 621.592

4'  CONC. BLOCK GOOD 

MHSN 166

I
n
v
 
6
1
6
.3

0
1
 
6
''V

C
P
 

N
 

I
n
v
 
6
1
5
.2

5
1
 
8
''V

C
P
 

W
 

R
i
m
 

6
2
2
.8

9
1

4
'  S

E
A

L
E

D
 

G
O

O
D
 

M
H

S
N
 
2
2
5

T/
P 

6.
6 

NONENONE 
N

T/
P 
 6
.6
 N

ONENONE 
EW 

Ri
m 

62
2.

64
8

4'
  P

C 
GOOD 

WVV 
15

7

T
/

P
 
 
6
.0

7
 

N
O

N
E

N
O

N
E
 

N
S

R
i
m
 

6
2
2
.0

6
3

4
'  P

C
 

G
O

O
D
 

W
V

V
 
1
5
9

T
/

P
 
 
5
.2

8
 
8
''D

I
 
N

S
 

R
i
m
 

6
2
2
.8

2
3

4
'  P

C
 

E
X

C
E

L
L

E
N

T
 

W
V

V
 
2
4
9

V
A

L
L
E

Y
 
V
IE

W
 
D

R
IV

E

SKOKIE BLVD

RECREATION CENTER

COMMUNITY

SCALE: 1" = 100'

0 50 100

G
L
E

N
V
IE

W
 
R

O
A

D

WALL, 394'
SHEET PILE
TEMPORARY
54'

PUMP STATION REQUIRED

EXCAVATION FOOTPRINT: 1.02 AC

DEPTH: 11'-4"

STORAGE VOLUME: 10.0 AC-FT

WIDTH 22'
OVERDIG

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION

HIBBARD PARK

CONTRACT #2

STAGING AREA

SHEET PILING

EXCAVATION

STORAGE

LEGEND

CONJUNCTION WITH THE PARK DISTRICT AT A LATER DATE
STATION AND GENERATOR WILL BE DETERMINED IN
THE LOCATION OF THE EQUIPMENT PAD AND/OR PUMP

WILL BE DEFINED DURING FINAL ENGINEERING DESIGN.
APPROXIMATE FOOTPRINT.  EXACT FOOTPRINT AND LIMITS
IDENTIFYING THE STORAGE RESERVOIR LOCATION AND
LIMITS SHOWN ARE CONCEPTUAL WITH THE PURPOSE OF
STORAGE RESERVOIR CONFIGURATION AND EXCAVATION

FINAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION.
FORESTRY PERSONNEL WILL BE ENGAGED DURING BOTH
BE PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE VILLAGE'S
DESIGN.  ALL EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN IN PLACE WILL
MAY BE IDENTIFIED FOR REMOVAL DURING THE FINAL
MANY TREES AS POSSIBLE, HOWEVER ADDITIONAL TREES
THE VILLAGE OF WILMETTE ENDEAVORS TO PROTECT AS

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
MATERIAL, AND STORAGE OF VAULT COMPONENTS 
EQUIPMENT, STOCKPILING TOPSOIL AND EXCAVATED 
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES INCLUDING STORAGE OF 
STAGING AREAS TO BE USED FOR TEMPORARY
NOTE:

INLET

INLET/OUTLET

INLET

B
M

B
M

B
M

S
A

N

S
T C
B

C
B

W
V

V
C

B

W
V

V

S
T

C
B

S
A

N

S
T

S
T

S
A

N

C
B

C
B

S
T

S
T

S
A

N

C
B

C
B

S
T

C
B

C
B

C
B

C
B

C
B

S
T

C
B

2
4
"

P
C
 

B
O

X

P
C
 

B
O

X

2
4
" 3
6
"

2
1
"

3
4
"

2
0
"

P
P

L
1
0
"

3
"

1
4
"

2
6
"

1
0
"

P
P

U
C

3
0
"

2
0
"

2
4
"

A
V

2
3
"

2
0
"

1
8
"

3
4
"

C
I

3
0
"

3
4
"

3
4
"

3
4
"

2
0
"

1
4
"

2
2
"

2
0
"

B
B

2
2
"

3
6
"

8
"

2
4
"

P
P

U
C

1
6
"

1
0
"

1
2
"

1
4
"

1
8
"
 
1
5
"

1
0
"

1
4
"

8
"

8
"

1
4
"

S
L
-
P

U
B

L
I
C

B
B

3
6
"

3
4
"

A
V

A
V

1
4
"

1
2
"

2
1
"

1
5
"

B
B

1
5
"

P
P

U
C

1
4
"

1
2
"

5
0
' 

2
0
"

B
B

B
B

1
3
"

A
V

C
O

N
C

H
M

A

H
M

A

C
O

N
C

P
C
 
B

O
X

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
A

N
Y
 
T
IM

E
"

"
D

O
 
N

O
T
 
E

N
T
E

R
"

"
D

O
 
N

O
T
 
E

N
T
E

R
"

C
O

N
C

W
O

O
D
 
S
IG

N

"
3
5
 

M
P

H
"

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
A

N
Y
 
T
IM

E
"

CONC

3
' 

W
O

O
D

8
"
 
C

O
N

C

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
A

N
Y
 
T
IM

E
"

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
A

N
Y
 
T
IM

E
"

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

CONC

6
' 

W
O

O
D

6
' 

W
O

O
D

H
O

U
S

E

G
A

R
A

G
E

HMA

C
O

N
C

CONC

C
O

N
C

STAMPED CONC

C
H

A
IN

L
IN

K

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

B
R

K
 

W
A

L
LC
O

N
C

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
IN
 
C

U
L

D
E
S

A
C
"

B
U

S
H

C
O

N
C

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
A

N
Y
 
T
IM

E
"

2
' 

A
R

E
A
 
G

R
V

L
 
T

O
 
E

A
S

T

6
' 

W
O

O
D

"
S
T

O
P
"

F
L

O
W

E
R
S

F
L

O
W

E
R
S

CONC

CONC

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

"
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
R

E
G

S
"

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

H
M

A

H
M

A

C
O

N
C

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
A

N
Y
 
T
IM

E
"

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

6
' 

W
O

O
D

4
' 

C
H

A
IN
 
L
IN

K

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
A

N
Y
 
T
IM

E
"

1
8
"
rc

p

1
8
"
rc

p

1
2
"
rc

p

12"rcp

8"rcp

2
1
"
rc

p

15"rcp

1
8
"rc

p

12"rcp

1
8
"
rc

p

1
2
"rc

p

18"rcp

8
"
rc

p

SAN

S
A

N

SANSAN

O
A

K

O
A

K

C
R

A
B

P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E
P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E

P
I
N

E

C
O

T
T

O
N

W
O

O
D

H
O

N
E

Y
 

L
O

C
U
S

T

H
O

N
E

Y
 

L
O

C
U
S

T

B
L

U
E
 
S
P

R
U

C
E

H
O

N
E

Y
 

L
O

C
U
S

T

B
A

L
D
 

C
Y
P

R
E
S
S

B
A

L
D
 

C
Y
P

R
E
S
S

B
U

R
 

O
A

K

S
H

A
G
 

H
I
C

K
O

R
Y

W
A

L
N

U
T

S
I
L

V
E

R
 

M
A
P

L
E

M
U
S

C
L
E
 

W
O

O
D

O
A

K

E
L

M

E
L

M

E
L

M

O
A

K

O
A

K

O
A

K

O
A

K

 
O

A
K

O
A

K

O
A

K

H
I
C

K
O

R
Y

M
A
P

L
E

M
A
P

L
E

H
I
C

K
O

R
Y

C
B

1
0
"

1
6
"

8
'

8
'

8
' 8
'

8
'

8
'

2
2
"

2
7
"

I
P
1

3
-
6
"
 
4
"
 
3
"

3
-
3
"

7
"

9
"

1
0
"

1
4
"

8
"

1
0
"

1
0
"

6
"

8
"
 
5
"

4
-
5
"

6
-
4
"

4
-
3
" 7
"

3
0
' 

1
1
"

3
5
' 

1
4
"

1
8
"

2
"

8
" 6
" 6
"

1
4
"

1
8
"

1
6
"

2
6
"

3
0
' 

1
5
"

3
0
' 

1
5
"

3
0
' 

1
5
"

2
0
"

1
5
' 

6
" 4
8
"

2
0
' 

5
"

1
5
' 

5
"

2
5
' 

6
"

2
0
' 

8
"

2
0
' 

8
"

2
0
' 

1
0
"

2
0
' 

1
0
"

1
5
' 

6
"

1
5
' 

6
"

7
2
"

1
6
"

9
6
" 3
"

1
4
" 1
2
' 

3
"

3
2
" 1
5
"

3
6
"

2
0
"

1
8
"

3
2
"

3
6
"

S
L
-
P

U
B

L
I
C

3
6
"

3
6
"

H
2

O
 
S

U
R
F

3
0
"

6
"

5
0
"

7
"

1
8
"

1
8
"

1
6
"

3
6
"

3
6
"

1
8
"

1
8
"

3
6
"

5
-
4
"

4
-
3
"

4
-
5
"

H
2

O
 
S

U
R
F

I
P
1 I
P
1

2
0
"

3
4
"

I
P
1

E
L
 

M
T

R

I
P
1

1
2
'

1
0
'

1
2
"

4
0
"

2
4
"

L
T

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
"

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
"

CONC

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

CONC

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

CONC

CONC

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

CONC

CONC

P
R
I
V

P
R
I
V

B
U

S
H

E
S

"
N

O
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
"

E
N

T
E

R
"

"
D

O
 
N

O
T

E
N

T
E

R
"

"
D

O
 
N

O
T

P
E

D
"

S
T

O
P
 
F

O
R

"
5
 

M
P

H

O
N

L
Y
"

T
U

R
N

"
L
E
F
T

P
E

D
"

F
O

R

"
S
T

O
P
 

W
IT

H
 
P
L

A
Q

U
E

6
"
 
X
 
6
"
 

W
O

O
D
 
P

O
S
T

W
IT

H
 
P
L

A
Q

U
E

6
"
 
X
 
6
"
 

W
O

O
D
 
P

O
S
T

W
IT

H
 
P
L

A
Q

U
E

6
"
 
X
 
6
"
 

W
O

O
D
 
P

O
S
T

W
IT

H
 
P
L

A
Q

U
E

6
"
 
X
 
6
"
 

W
O

O
D
 
P

O
S
T

W
/3
"
 
T

O
 
N

E

Y
A

R
D
 
D

R
A
IN
 
1
2
"
 
X
 
1
2
"
 

2
' 

R
O

C
K
 

W
IT

H
 
P
L

A
Q

U
E

S
P

R
IN

K
L
E

R
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 
B

O
X

3
' 

W
ID

E
 
F
L

A
G

S
T

O
N

E
 
 
B

O
R

D
E

R

W
IT

H
 

W
O

O
D
 
S
IG

N

F
L

O
W

E
R
 
B

E
D

N
O
 
P
IP

E
S
 
V
IS
IB

L
E

Y
A

R
D
 
D

R
A
IN
 
1
2
"
 
X
 
1
2
"
 

W
IT

H
 
P
L

A
Q

U
E

6
"
 
X
 
6
"
 

W
O

O
D
 
P

O
S
T

F
L

O
W

E
R
S

B
L
E

A
C

H
E

R
 
P

A
D

C
O

N
C

6
' 

C
H

A
IN
 
L
IN

K

1
0
' 

C
H

A
IN
 
L
IN

K

3
' 

S
P
L
IT
 
R

A
IL

GROUND COVER

6
' 

A
L

U
M
IN

U
M

3
' 

S
P
L
IT
 
R

A
IL

3
' 

S
P
L
IT
 
R

A
IL

3
' 

S
P
L
IT
 
R

A
IL

W
IT

H
 
P
L

A
Q

U
E

6
"
 
X
 
6
"
 

W
O

O
D
 
P

O
S
T

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 
P

A
N

E
L

4
' 

C
H

A
IN
 
L
IN

K
 
T

O
 
4
' 

P
V

C

"
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 
R

E
G

S
"

4
' 

C
H

A
IN
 
L
IN

K

F
R

O
M
 
7
' 

W
O

O
D
 
T

O

T
O
 
7
' 

W
O

O
D

F
R

O
M
 
5
' 

C
H

A
IN
 
L
IN

K
 

BUSHES

"
P
E
T
 
R

E
G

S
"

M
U

L
C

H

B
E

N
C

H

3
R

D
 
B

A
S
E

2
N

D
 
B

A
S
E

1
0
' 

C
H

A
IN
 
L
IN

K

C
O

N
C

P
IT

C
H

E
R
S
 

M
O

U
N

D

3
' 

S
P
L
IT
 
R

A
IL

G
A

R
B

A
G

E
 
C

A
N

S

D
O

G
 

W
A
S
T
E
 
B

A
G

S

"
P

A
R

K
 
R

E
G

S
"

S
P

R
IN

K
L
E

R

H
M

A

C
O

N
C

3
0
0
0

3
0
0
6

"
P

A
R

K
 
R

E
G

S
"

"
P

A
R

K
 
R

E
G

S
"

8" pvc

12"pvc

1
8
"
v
c
p

1
8
"
v
c
p

1
8
"
v
c
p

8"pvc

6"vcp

1
2
"
rc

p

1
2
"
rc

p

6"vcp

8
"
v
c
p

7
/
2
9
/
2
0
19

I:
\

C
r
y
s
t
a
l 
L
a
k
e
\

W
IL

M
V
\
18

0
5
6
4
-

N
S
IP
\

C
A

D
\

E
x
h
ib
it

s
\
18

0
5
6
4
_

H
ib

b
a
r
d
 

P
a
r
k

_
1.
d
g
n

VILLAGE OF WILMETTE, ILLINOIS

HIBBARD PARK - UNDERGROUND DETENTION CONFIGURATION ALTERNATIVES

DRAFT

129



SCALE: 1" = 80'

0 40 80

THORNWOOD AVENUE

D
A

R
T

M
O

U
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

C
O

L
G

A
T

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

INLET/OUTLET

PUMP STATION REQUIRED

EXCAVATION FOOTPRINT: 1.35 AC

DEPTH: 11'-4"

STORAGE VOLUME: 13.9 AC-FT

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION

THORNWOOD PARK

CONTRACT #3

WIDTH 22'
OVERDIG

WALL, 50'
SHEET PILE
TEMPORARY
54'

WALL, 400'
SHEET PILE
TEMPORARY
54'

STAGING AREA

SHEET PILING

EXCAVATION

STORAGE

LEGEND

CONJUNCTION WITH THE PARK DISTRICT AT A LATER DATE.
STATION AND GENERATOR WILL BE DETERMINED IN
THE LOCATION OF THE EQUIPMENT PAD AND/OR PUMP

WILL BE DEFINED DURING FINAL ENGINEERING DESIGN.
APPROXIMATE FOOTPRINT.  EXACT FOOTPRINT AND LIMITS
IDENTIFYING THE STORAGE RESERVOIR LOCATION AND
LIMITS SHOWN ARE CONCEPTUAL WITH THE PURPOSE OF
STORAGE RESERVOIR CONFIGURATION AND EXCAVATION

FINAL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION.
FORESTRY PERSONNEL WILL BE ENGAGED DURING BOTH
BE PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE VILLAGE'S
DESIGN.  ALL EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN IN PLACE WILL
MAY BE IDENTIFIED FOR REMOVAL DURING THE FINAL
MANY TREES AS POSSIBLE, HOWEVER ADDITIONAL TREES
THE VILLAGE OF WILMETTE ENDEAVORS TO PROTECT AS

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
MATERIAL, AND STORAGE OF VAULT COMPONENTS 
EQUIPMENT, STOCKPILING TOPSOIL AND EXCAVATED 
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES INCLUDING STORAGE OF 
STAGING AREAS TO BE USED FOR TEMPORARY
NOTE:

BM

BM

WVV

WVV

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

CB

ST

ST

WVV

SAN

ST

CB

WVV

CB

WVV

CB

WVV

CB

WVV

SAN

PPUC

24"
40"

PPO

20"

10"

12"

32"

BB
BB

AV

50' 21"

50' 18"

50' 15"

50' 30"

30"
4"

3-1"

10"

PPL

PPUC

BB

40' 12"

BB4"

2"42"

PPL
20"

BB

WVB

WVB

33"

33"
3"

AV

20"

21"
4"

20"4"

BB

UNK

36"

PPL

AV

METER

7"

CONC

2" 2"

"PARKING REGS"

4' WOOD

CONCBRK

FLAGSTONE

CONC

CONC

CONC

"SCHOOL ZONE AHEAD"

"SPEED HUMP"

HMA B
R

K

SPRINKLER

"20 MPH SCHOOL ZONE""NO PARKING ANYTIME"

CONC

"NO PARKING ANYTIME"
"STOP"

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

4 X 4 X .75' TALL POST

CONC

CONC

"STOP"

CONC

HMA

"STOP"

3"

"PARKING REGS"

CONC

"STOP"

SCHOOL DAYS"

"ONE WAY

BM#22

"NO PARKING HERE TO CORNER" CONC

BRK

"PARKING REGS"

HMA BRK

CONCCONC
CONC

HMA

GRND COVER

BUSHES

SPRINKLER

CONC

HMA

"PARKING REGS"

HMA

CONC

42"

BB

CONC

CONCHMA

BRK

"SPEED HUMP"

4' WROUGHT IRON

2" HMA BRK

CONC

CONC
"PARKING REGS"

CONC HMA

WOOD

B
R

K

CONC

CONC

CONC

CONC

HMA

6"

6" PERFORATED LID
"PARKING REGS"

CONC

6
"

6
"

36"36"

6
"

6
"

6
"

8"

36"

36"

2-5" 3"

ST

4-2" 2-2"

ST

SL-PRIVATE

SL-PRIVATE

10'

8'

ST

10'

PPO

METER

BB

EL MTR

PPO

IP1

RBPPUC

IP1

PPUC

4"

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST
W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST
W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

3" STL FOR BATTING CAGE

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

3" STL FOR BATTING CAGE

HUB AERIAL TARGET

LIGHTING CONTROL PANEL

15" X 30" CONTROL CABINET FOR

AREIAL TARGET

CENTER OF CLEANOUT

BROKEN FLAGSTONE

HUB AERIAL TARGET

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

V
E

H
IC

L
E
S
"

M
O

T
O

R
IZ

E
D

"
N

O

ALUM BENCH

ALUM BLEACHERS

8' CHAIN LINK

4' CHAIN LINK

BACK STOP

CHAIN LINK

HOME PLATE

HOME PLATE

HOME PLATE

BACK POINT OF

HOME PLATE

BACK POINT OF

1ST BASE

1ST BASE

2ND BASE

2ND BASE3RD BASE

3RD BASE

RUBBER

PITCHING

RUBBER

PITCHING

4' CHAIN LINK

8' CHAIN LINK

ALUM BENCH

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

ALUM BLEACHERS

ALUM BENCH

8' CHAIN LINK

4' CHAIN LINK

CHAIN LINK BACK STOP

8'CHAIN LINK

4'CHAIN LINK

REGS"

"PARKING

REGS"

"PARKING

REGS"

"PARKING

HERE TO CORNER"

"NO PARKING

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

GRASS

GRASS

DIRT

DIRT

DIRT

DIRT

GRVL

CONC

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

CONC

ALUM BENCH

3"

2"

3-3" 7-2"

W/MEMORIAL PLAQUE

6"X6" WOOD POST

4-2"

3"

4-4"

2"

3"

3"

BENCH

4' WOOD

4"

4"

2"

2-7" 4-4"

8-3"

8
"
v
c
p

1
2
"
v
c
p

1
2
"
v
c
p

2301

2300231023142318
12012336

231523192321232323272331233523392345234723512401241124132415
2419

36"

3' MULCH

4' MULCH

6' MULCH

6' MULCH
6' MULCH

8' FLOWERS

CONC

21"vcp

8"

36"

30" OAK

22" OAK 21" OAK

26" OAK

21" OAK

16" OAK

20" OAK

21" OAK

36" OAK

21" OAK

30" OAK

24" OAK

20" BOX ELDER

10" CRABAPPLE

6"

25' 12" SPRUCE

6-2" 

5" 

11" SYCAMORE

5" MAPLE

8" BASSWOOD

25' 12" CYPRESS

25' 12" CYPRESS

40" OAK

6" CATALPA

25' 12" BALD CYPRESS

35' 16" PINE

30' 16" PINE

12" 3-6" 6-4" 5-3" MAPLE

18" TULIP

20" BEECH

10" MAPLE

36" ELM

2-12" HAWTHRON

6" MAPLE

22" BASSWOOD

2-12" SYCAMORE

11" MAPLE

10" MAPLE

7" MAPLE

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-3

C-2

C-3

12" PEAR

C-3

C-2

C-2

C-2

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

8" PEAR

C-4

C-3

C-3

7" SWEETGUM

C-3

C-1

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-2

10" CRABAPPLE

C-3 C-3

C-3

8" 7" 5" PEAR

C-3

C-1

C-3

C-3

C-2

C-3

C-2

9" GINKGO
32" HONEY LOCUST

23" HONEY LOCUST

C-3
C-3

C-3

13" OAK

13" HAWTHORN

C-3

C-3

12" 6' HAWTHORN

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3
C-3

20" HONEY LOCUST

33" ELM

10" 4-8" 5" BASSWOOD

9" BASSWOOD

8" ELM
12" MAPLE

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3
4-7" 3-3" REDBUD

3-12" HAWTHORN

3-12" HAWTHORN

2-10" 8" HAWTHORN

3-10" HAWTHORN

C-3

10" CRABAPPLE

C-3

7" CRABAPPLE

C-4

2-6" FLOWERING DOGWOOD

C-3

8" SUGAR MAPLE

7
/
2
9
/
2
0
19

I:
\

C
r
y
s
t
a
l 
L
a
k
e
\

W
IL

M
V
\
18

0
5
6
4
-

N
S
IP
\

C
A

D
\

E
x
h
ib
it

s
\
18

0
5
6
4
_

T
h
o
r
n

w
o

o
d
 

P
a
r
k

_
P

R
-

C
o

n
f
ig
.d

g
n

VILLAGE OF WILMETTE, ILLINOIS

THORNWOOD PARK - UNDERGROUND DETENTION CONFIGURATION ALTERNATIVES

DRAFT

130


	Agenda
	Action List
	Correspondence
	Director's Memo
	Resolution
	MOU



